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Introduction

Wc havc performcd a limitcd revicw of thc accompanying consolidatcd statcment of financial position of
Housing and Dcvclopmcnt Bank "Egyptian Joint Stock Cornpany" as of Scptcmbcr 30, 202 I and the rclatcd
consolidatcd incomc slatcmcnt, consolidatcd comprchensivc incomc, consolidated cash flows and consolidatcd
changcs in equity for thc nine months period thcn cndcd, and a summary of significant accounting policics and
othcr explanatory notcs. Managcmenl is rcsponsiblc for the prcparalion and fair prcscntation of thcse
consolidatcd intcrim financial slatemcnts in accordance with the rulcs of prcparation and prcsentation of thc
banks' financial statements and the basis of rccognition and measurcment issued by thc Ceniral Bank of Egypt
on December 16, 2008 as amendcd by the rcgulations issued on February 26, 2019 and the prevailing egyptian
laws and regulations. Our responsibility is to cxpress a conclusion on thcsc consolidated intcrim financial
slatcmcnts bascd on our limitcd revicw-

Scope of limited rcvicw

We conducted our limited rcview in accordancc with thc Egyptian Standard on Rcview Engagcmcnts (2410)
"l-imitcd Rcvicw of Interim l"inancial Statcmenls Pcrformed by the indcpendcnt nuditor of thc llntity''_ A
limitcd revierv of consolidated intcrim financial slatcmcnts consists of making inquirics, primarily of pcrsons
rcsponsiblc lor financial and accounling mattcrs in bank, and applying analyrical and othcr limitcd rcvicw
proccdurcs. A limilcd rcvicw is substantially lcss in scope than an audit conducrcd in accordancc with lrgyptian
Standards on Auditing and conscquenlly docs not cnablc us to obtain assurancc thal wc would bccomc aware of
all significant matlers that might be idcntifisd in an audit. Accordingly, wc do not express an audit opinion on
thcse consolidated intcrim fi nancial stalemcnts.

Conclusion

Bascd on our limiled revicw, nothing has comc to our attention that causcs us to bclicve that thc accompanying
consolidatcd intcrim financial statcmcnts do not present fairly, in all matcrial rcspccts, the consolidated financial
position ofthc Ilank as at Septembcr 30, 2021 and o[ its consolidated financial pcrformancc and its consolidated
cash flows for thc nine monlhs pcriod then endcd, in accordance with rulcs of prcparation and prcscntation of
thc banks' financial statcmcnls and basis of rccognition and mcasurcmcnt issucd by thc Ccntral Ilank of Egypt
on I)eccmbcr 16, 2008 as amcndcd by thc rcgulations issucd on Icbruary 26, 2019 and prcvailing l.,gyptian laws
and rcgulalio,s rclaled to thc preparation ofthc intcrirn consolidated Iinancial stalcmcnt.
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HOUSING AND DEVELOPMEN'I' BANK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

ASSETS
Cash and balances with central bank ofE$Tt
Due from banks
LoarN & Facilities to customers
Financial ssscts
Financial investrnent at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets at fair talue through other comprchensive
income
Financial asscts at amortized costs
Finaflcial assets in subsidiades and associates
Housing projecs
Real estate investments
Intangible assets

Other assets
Deferred tax assets
Fixed assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Customcrs' dcposits
Other loans
Dividends payablc
Other Liabilities
Provisions
Current Income tax obligations
Retirement benefit obligations
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
lssued and paid-up-capital
Amouns reserved for capital increase
Reserves

Retained earnings (included ner profit ofthe period)
Other comprehensive income

TOTAL SITAREHOLDERS'EQUITY
Non-controlling interest
TOTAL SIIAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTEREST.TOTAL LIABII,ITIES AND SIIAREHOLDERS'EQUITY
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Note
No.

30togDozl
EGP

3v12t2020
EOP

(16)
(17)
(18)

6,389,603,162
8,420 ,060,024

22,375, t t 9,113

46t,567,042

I9,s36,653,590

6,178,070,372
2,441,716,446
2,524,141,129

100,666,6sE
84J30,087

2,999,545,6!1
64,540,100

5,800,495,733
3,819,857,064

r8,962, r 24,081

(te)

(20)

(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(2s)
(321
(26)

(21)
(28)
(2e)

(30)
(31)

(33)

(34)
(34)
(3s)

438,5r8,768

14,737,361,728

5,515,4t5,367
2,090,433,758
2,433,308377

106,620,726
t04)14,479

2,208,849,586
62,942,966

r,r07,334,9451,t22,036,428
12,698,049,7t8 61,387,680.S78

696,247,166
56,176,074,860

I,099,696,146
60,017,a22

3,670,659,161
377,,151,159
220,346.39t

45,773,699

786,929,640
,16,98r,598,s0s

888,568,740
37,t 16,309

2,915,20t,2ss
187,142,1l9
222,669,114
47,013,604

52,266,300,0E6

1,518.000,000
25J,000,000

4,869,170,594
3,481,69s,s74

128,262,302

r,265,000,000
379,500,000

3,766,692,193
3,426,353,692

182,633,s?s

10,250,128,470 9,020,r 79.160

101,654,1t,l 101,201,032

10,3s1,872,584 9,121,380,492

72,698,049,788 61,387,680,578

Hass Ismail Ghanim

Chicf Financial Officcr C tf & Managing Dircctor

Sherif El- Sameh Saad Mohamed egeed

4.r1
E&Y Allied for Accounting & Auditing Accountability State Authority

- The accompanying notes, from ( I ) to (4 I ) form an integral pan of the consolidated llnaocial statements and to be read therewith.
- Review report attached.
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HOUSING 
^ND 

DEVELOPMENT BANK
CONSOLIDA'I'ED INCOME STATEM ENT
FOR THE NINE MOI-TIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 202t

Notes

Nirr months

€odad at

30fi9n02t
EGP

Nin. morlhs

ended rl
30/09nt20

EGP

From

0l/01 12021 to

30/09/202t

EGP

From

0Y01n020 to

30rc9n020

EGP

(6)

(6)

(8)

(e)

(t 0)

(13)

(3t)

(ll)
lt2l

lnterest from loans and similar income

Interest on deposits and similarexpcnse

Nea intcr€st iDcomc

Fces and commission income

Fess and commission cxpensc

Net fees rnd commission income

Dividends income

NcI incorhe from financialasses at fair yalue through profit snd lcs
Housing projc.ts profit

Subsidiaries Revenues

Subsidiarics Exp€nses

Bank ponion in incame of arsocisrcs aompanics

loans impairment loss (reversal)

ReveNal of othff provisions

Cencral and adminisfiativc €xp€nses

Other operoting rcvenues

Net itrcom. b.forc incomc trx

Income tax expenses

Nel il|comc for the period

Non-controlling tntercst in net income for the period

Equity holders ofthe bank

Nat iocome for lh. pcriod

Earniogs per shere

(7)

t1l

285,721,294

(3 r,523,65 r)(3.1.151,t94

25t2r6lt1 254,201,643 93,10t,7r'

5,0t9,919,306

12.639.9 t I .r0l )

2.{50.00t.105

4,322.453,67t

(2,121,r 06,sE9)

1.999,347,089

| ,173,466.t7 5

(939*s68r40)

833,898,635

I,433,050,2t 5

(725 244,629)

707,805,586

265.651Jl I I I3,050,233

(15,967,655)

97,082,5'78

s,637,563

46,26t516

416,,t45,9 rl
256,44t,60t

(2595r6,07r)

248214,199

(r09,014,443)

t6,49t,9t2
(1,255,6t5.775)

90,143,698

2226,13t,942

2,954,394

35,924,116

414,532,t84

I t9,2E3,413

(r32,Et8233)

23t.535.0t3

190,074,912

t8,779,307

(r,087,789,2t7)

610

52.t32

t1,62t,66t

I1t,74I,579

1t179,s14
(75,646J17)

102,402,113

(3,767 )491
E2,590,00{

(45t,76r,097)

(4t.751 ,t941

582,87r

l7,681.629

143,445,EE5

43,359,1E0

(46349,082)

t 06,160,0tc

37,369,560

(10,545,657)

1342,437,429)

49 954 109

7t4,320,t49

(645,141347\ (s22,333,112) (192.613,862)

l5&.591,s9s 1.655,654, r09 577S135s9 s91,646,981

2,t'17 ,98't ,821 7 46,936,t20

(169,401,261)( t.l)

(ls)

9,4tt,2r 3

r,s72,113)82

r 5El59 r.s9s

ll.Jt

9,900,810

1,945,753,219

J,154,557

574J79,002

4,269220

587,377,'167

r,6ss.654,t09 5775f3,559 59t,646,987

ll0t

3

99.547 361

$,143.6421



IIOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT I}ANK
CONSOI,IDATED S ATEMENT O}- COMPREIIENSIVE INCOME
I-OR TIIE NINE MONTIIS llNDI,tD 30 SItPl'EMBEtt 2021

Nrt ircome for the period

Financialassels at fat value throuth other comprehensive income

Totel compreheI|siv€ iIrcomc

Non-controlling interest ponion in OCI
Equity holders ofde bank ponion in OCI

Notcs

ECP EGP

l,5Er59r,59s 1.655,651,109 s77513,5s9 59t.646,987
(20) (s437t,2731 s8,618,971 30,t6s,93s (5,053,359)

1,521,220,322 1,7 t4,21i,080 601\699,194 586.s93,628

Nine mon(hs

eoded rt
30/09n02t

Ninc monlhs

ended al

30/09t2020

Three months

from

0ll07l202l to
30rc9n021

EGP

Thr€e monrhs

from

0U07n020 to

30t09/2020

EGP

1.704

9Jl8rr3
1.5r7.802,109

t521220.322

9,900,830 3,154.55?

604,544,937

607,699,494

4,269,220

582,324,408

I.714273.080 586,s93.628
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HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEn-T OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 202I

1,265,000,000 379,500,000

4,500

1,265,000,000 379,500,000 542,401,962 3,104,000,000 9,344,966 21,707,455 27,000

C.ncrai
risk

Other 'lolsl
Shareholde6r controlling

l-esal Olhcr
of

G.n€rrl
B.nk
Rick

22,500

1,5E1,591,s95

10,J51,782,564

BalMce as of I Janmry 2020
DrBd.nds pard for thc yc.r20l9
Transfcncd lo rcscrws
Chang€ in financial asscis at fair valuc
lhroush othcr compr.h.nsivc incom.
N.l profil for th. Nin. 

'nonrhs.ndcd10n9n020

Bslanc.s a5 at 30 S.plc,nbcl 2020

Balancc s! of I January 2021

Dividcnds paid for th. ycar 2020
Transf.rld to rcslrv.s
R.s!rv!d lor capit.l incr.as.
TEDsf.n.d to bankrng scclor strppon
and dcvclopmcnl tund

Chgnr€ in financial asscts al fairvaltE
rhroush olh!r comprchcnsiv. incom.
Caprral inclcts.
Ncl profit for thc Nrnc monllls cndcd
3A/0912021

Brlincer r! ti 30 S.prcmbcr 20Zl

444,a47,495

97 .554.467

1,719,400,040 9,144,966

r,325,000,000

1E,165,606

1,136,849

89,215,U0 3.3?3,tE6.589
. (57r,295,&2)
- (r,425,895.rr6)

?.437,365,t53
(57t,295.8t2)

7 ,532,314,821
(575,005,27E)

7E,E82,087

5E,6t8,9?l

9,900,830

l]7,501,05t 8,570,441,59t r0t,201,032 8,67 I ,647,623

95,009,668
(3,709,466)

58,6t8,971

1,645,753,279

5E,6IE,97I

1,655,654,109

9,020,179,460
(269,970,2 tt)

10r,201,032
(E,965,131)

9,r21,380,492

127E,935,3441

(17,E82,E66)

(54,371,27r)

(t6,682,E86)

154,171,27J)

I ,645,7 53 ,219

t,265,000,000 179,500,000 9,1rl,966 182,613,575

t26,500,000

,54,J71,273)

253,000,000 (2sJ,000,000)

t,572,171,182

I,S1E,000,000 251,000,000 632,4J8,{87 4,104.000,000 9,1{.t,965 J4,IJ9,EJl J1.500 E9,215.E10 3,4E1,595,574 12E,262,J02

5,12,40 I,952

90,036,525

3,10{,000,000

t,000,000,000

21,70:.455

t2,437,315

27,000

4,500

89,215,810

E9,215,E10

3.02t,748,340

3,,126,353,692
(259,9?0,2l])

(1,102,478,40r)
(t26,500,000)

(r?,E82,t86)

1,S?2,t71,18t 9'4lE2l3

io,xolilffi ror,cv,rr.r
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HOUSING AIID DEVELOPMENT I}ANK
CONSOLIDATID STATEMENT OI.' CASII }-LOWS
FOR TTIE NINf, MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

Ninc months
ended at

30t09t2021
EGP

Nine months
end€d at

30t09D020
Notcs

Cash Flows From Operrtirg activities
Profit before t&\
Adjust]Itentsi
Depreciation and amortization
(Reversal) of loans impairment losses
(Reversal) ofother assets and housing projects provision
Other provisions-charged during the period
Revaluation difference oflinancial asscts at fair value through profit and
loss

Amortization ofdiscount - financial assets at amortizgd cost
Bank's ponion in income ofassociates companies
Other provision utilized during the period
Provisions no longer required
Gain from sclling fixed assets

Opcrating income before changes i]l operrtihg assctr rnd liabilities
Net decrcase (increase) in asscts
Due fiom bank
Financial assets other than fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Loans and advances to customers and bank
Housing Projects and real estate investrnents
Other assets

Nct (decrcase) incrcasc in lisbilities
Due to banks
Customers' deposits
Other liabilities
Retirement benefi t obligations
Income tax paid

Net cash flows (uscd in) opcratiog activitiqt
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of Iixed assets
Proceeds from sale offixed assets
Payments for purchase of financial assets other tharl fair value through
profil and loss
Proceeds from sale offinancial assets other than fair value through profit
and loss
Payments for purchase ofintangible assets

Net cash flows (used io) inverting rctiyities
Cash llows from Finencing rctivities
Long-term loans
Dividends paid

Nct c{sh flows from ,inancing actiyilies
Nct increase in cash and cash equivalents during the period
Cash and cash equivalent ar the beginning ofthe period
C.sh and cash equivelenLt at the end ofthc period

Cash snd cash cquivalents are represcnted in:
Cash and balances with Cenral Bank of EB/pt
Due fiom banks
Financial assets other than at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Obligatory reserve balance with CBE
Bank Deposits with maturity more than thrce-months
Financial assets other than at fair value through profit and loss with
maturity more than three-month

Crsh and cash equivalents rt the end ofthe pcriod

2,226,738,942 2,177,987.821

(23),(24),(26)
(13)
(t2)
(3t)

(e)

(20)

(31)
(J l)
(12)

19E,,145,E35

I09,014,443
(1,732,734\
69,896,806

(33,130,061)

(4,s4E,r72)
(248,2t 4,499\

(2s,423,6s3)
(rs6,39s,718)

r88,388,244
(190,07 4,912\

(3,740,980)
38,314,518

(22,919,s77)

(8,809,r88)
(238.5r5,0r3)

(4,9r r,936)
(5?,093,825)

3,910,984,236
(2,026,706,ss9)

14,889,820
(959,0r r,652)
(102,413,063)

246,3't 5,878

(2t4,1I4,269)
4,17 9,67 5,666
(l 59 ,258,527)

(4.436,849)

93r) I2.
2,132,591,258 t,865,884,61t

(259,881,900)
2,994,863,969

t 0,0E1,787
(3,526,027,0r3)

(90,047,7921
(r 4r,703,997)

(90,682,01 4)
9 ,194,476)55

244,030,711
(r,299,90s)

648,992,0s1) (445-246,4'14\
9,817,,115.351 6,306,562,838

(125,331,062)
13,137,364

(4,559.371,102)

285,455,250

(22,1 16,868)

(r60,s86,080)
3,979,907

(5,?35,826,576)

I,199,447,60t

(28,s66,632)
(4,721,55t,?80) (4.40',1 .628,6t8)

120,179,171
(2,r?,068,700)
( r25,88E,929) (46t .630,615)
4,968,91 1,612
1,127,014,655

1.117.303.605

6,389,60J.162
8,420,050,024

15,750,030,293

(5,448,160,042)
(s,000,000)

(r 5,? 10,484, r40)

232 9t3 817

6,232,053.626
3 -472.493 -542

t 8,299.9 t9,93 t

(5,246,260,180)
(274,t79.t36)

( r7,8r 3.810,30 r)

9,196.049,297 4,6'10-217,482

6

(37) 9,396,049,291

120.s2t1

79,390,436
(541,02 t,051)

4,670,211,482



HOUSING AND I)EVELOI'MENT BANK
NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r.OR TIIE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SI.]PTEMBER 2O2I

I. Background

Housing and Developmenr bank is an Eglptian Joint Stock company established as Investments and Business Bank on 30 June 1979 by vinue-
ministerial Decree No.147 for a yeat 1979 and it handles its activity through the head office in Giza govcrnorate and the bark is registered in
the ES/ptian Stock Market for Securities.

2. Summarv ofSisnificant Accountins Policics

The principol occounting policics applied iu thc preparation ofthese financial stalements are setout below. These policies have been consistentiy
applied to allthe years presented, u.less otherwise stated.

A. Basis of Prcparation
The financial stalements have been prepared in accordancc with instruclions ofCentral bank ofEgypt approved by its board ofdirectors on
l6 December 2008, in addition to the historical cost basis, modified by the revaluarion offinancial assets and liabiliries originally valued
with fairvalue through profits and losses, and financial asscts atfairvalue through other comprehensive income, and all financial derivatives
contracB.

These consolida(ed fina[cial statements have becn prepared in accordance with relevant local laws, investment in associates have been
presgntcd in bank's consolidal.ed financial statements and measured using equity method less impairment loss.

These consolidated financial statcmcnts have been prepared until 3l December 2009 using central bank of Egypt instructions prevailing
until this date, this partially differ from the banks preparation and presentations rules and the recogni(ion and measuremenl basis approved
by central bank ofEgypt's boad ofdireclors on l6 December 2008. At the date of the prepamtion ofconsolidated financial statements
dated 3 I December 2010, the ba[k's management has amended certain accounting policies and basis of measurements to be in accordarce
with the preparation and presentation requirements and the recognition and measurements basis of banks consolidated financial statements
approved from the central bank ofEg)?t's board ofdirectors on l6 Deccmber 2008.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions ofthe Central Bank ofEgypt (CBE) rules
approved by its Board of Directors on 16 December 2008; that is differ with what is added under instructions of Central Bank of Egypt
issued on 26 February 2019 regarding the implementation ofIFRS 9 financial insrruments .

Elfcct of impleurentation IFRS 9 on Accoutrtins Policies
IFRS 9- Financial Iostruments

The Bank applied the inslructions ofthe Central Bank of E$/pt (CBE) rules IFRS 9 "Financial lnstruments" datcd February 26, 20t9
starting from Januaty 01,2019, Requirements oflFRS 9 represenG material change thar required under E$iptian accounting standard no.
26 "financial instrument- recognition and measurement" specially whcn related to classification, measurement and disclosure of financial
assets and some offinancial liabiliti€s, the following summarize the main accountiog policies changes resulted fiom applying the required
standards:

Classification of fin2 al ass€ts and liabilitics
Financial assets have been classified through three main categorics as the following:
- Financial assets at amonized cost.
- Financial assets at fair value through orher comprehensive income.
- Financial assets ar fair value through profit ard loss.
Based ofIFRS 9, financial assets have been classified according to how they are managed (the entity's business modcl) and thcir conlractual
cash flow characteristics. Thcreforc Egyptian accounting standard no. (26) is no longer applicd (Held to matu.iry, Loans and available for
sale).

lhe implicit dcrivative contracts shall not be separated when derivatives are associated with a financial asset and therefore the implicil
derivative contract is fully classified according to the related financial asset-

The change in financial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss is presentcd as follows:
- Thc changc in the fair value related to the change in the degree ofthe credit rating is presented in other comprehensive income.
- The remaining amount ofthe change in fair value under (net income from financial assets at fair valuc through profit or loss) is
presented in the income statement

Housing and Development bank provides Banking Services for Corporates rarher than Investments, retail Banking Services in the Arab repr.rblic
ofEgypt through 97 branches, and hires 2718 employees ar thc datc ofthe frnancial posilion.

1



IIOUSING AND DEVf,LOPMENT BANK
NO'TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

Impairme[t of fi nencial ass.ts
IFR_S 9 and centtal Bank ofE$pt (cBE) instructions replaced the impairmenr loss model recognized according to EAS 26 wirh expected
credit loss (ECL) model, also, IFRS 9 & CBE instructions requires from lhe bank to implemenl the measureminr of expected cred-it loss
(except for measured at fair valuc through profit afld loss and fair value through other comprehensive income).

The bank excludes the following from the calculation ofexpected credit losses:
Deposits at banks with a maturity date ofone month and less than lhc date ofthe finarcial position.
Current accounts at banks.
Balalces at the Cenkal Bank in local currency.
Debt instruments issued by the E$/ptiar govemment in local currency.
Provision shall be identified based on thc expected credit losses relating to probability ofdefa!lt over the next l2 months unless the crcdit
risk has incrcascJ substl,,lrlially since inceplion.

Segment reDortinq
is a group of ing products or s arc different ftom lhosc
ts or services segments. A geo ucts or services within a
ronmen[ char ts different from al segments operating in

a different economic environment.

Transitional provtslons
The bank has not re-measured the recognized financial instrumcnE in thg comparative financiat statemcnts, but only reclassified the

witl the presentation method of the financial strtements, subject to

financial position is deducted fiom the financial asset value at the timc
t provision of the loan commitments, financial guamntee contracts and
ial position obligations.

B. Besis of pregentatioo of consolidrtion
Subsidirries

indirectly to govem the financial
bark owns, directly or indirectly,
n exceeding directly or indirectly
rrently exercisable or convertible

The Group fully consolidates itssubsidiaries from the effective date in which mntrol is obtained and deconsolidates them when such control
ceases to exist.

Information on subsidiaries is set out below for companies which are combined in the bank's consolidated financial statements as of3o
September 2021.

Dire.t & indircct
sharc 7o

Holding company for Investment and Development
Housing and development company for real-estate investment
El-Tameer comp al estate investment banking
El-Tameer comp nmentalservices Hemava
El-Tamecr comp ouristic asset Management
Real estate devel
Information and elec
Et-rameer compary 1111L"",
Hemaya company fo
HD for leasing

92v"
94,96y"
94,20y"
85,92v"
62,62y"
93,83%
86,92yo
92,77y"
94,820h
97.ttyo
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Basis ofCombinarions
During the preparation of consolidated linancial statements, the bank combincs the consolidated financial statement with subsidiary
comparies financials statemcnts, through the combination of similar items ofasse6. liabilities, owner's equity, revcnues and expenses fo;
the purpose ofPresenting the c.nsolidated l'inancial statement as ofone business unit, going ttrough following steps during the preparation
of consolidated fi nancial statement:
- Elimination ofthc book value for investments in subsidiary company according to Equity method, including share ofholding company

in lhe equity of each subsidiary compary.
- Non-controlling interest in profit/ loss ofsubsidiaries is considered during the fiscal year in the preparation ofthc financial reports.
- Non-controlling interest in net asseb ofthe subsidiaries is determined during the preparation ofconsolidated finarcial staroments and

prcsented in the consolidated financial statements in the owner's e4uity ofholding company.
- Elimination ofall interrelated revenues and expenses transactioos between the subsidiaries within the group.
- Elimination ofall balances resulted from the transactions betweeo the subsidiaries within the group, also group transactions including

revenues, expenscs and dividends, besides elimination ofall revenues and losses resulted of such transactions and rccognized in the
assels value.

- The finaacial statemenb are presented using same accounting policies for similar transactions and same events under same
c ircu mstances.

Br. Associstes
According to the equity method, an investment in an zLssociate is initially recognizrd in the statement of financial position at cost and is
subsequently adjusted to recognize the Group's share in profit or loss, and other changes in the net assets. ofthe associate.

C. l'ranslation oI oreisn Currencics
C.l. Functionel and oresente(ion cnrrencv
The financial statements are presented in Egyptian pound, which is the bank's functional and presentation currency

c.2. Functions and balenccs in currcncrcs
The bank maintains its accounts in Eryptia! pound and transactions are recorded in foreign currencies during the financial year on the basis
ofprevailing exchange rates at the date of lhe traNaction, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cunencies are retranslated
at thc end ofthe fina[cial year on the basis ofprevailing exchange rates al that date. Foreign exchange gains arld losses resuhing from the
senlement and translation ofsuch transactions and balances are recognized in thc income statement ard reported under the following items:

' Net income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss/or net income fiom financial instruments classified at fair value
through profit and loss at the dale of inception ofrhe assetVliabilities or those classified at the date of inception with its fair value
through profits and losses according to their type-

' Shareholders' equity of financial derivatives as a coverage for cash flo nel investmcnt or as a coverage for net investment. Other operating income (expenses) for the other items,
' Changes in fair value of financial instrumenb denominated in foreign currency classified at fair value through other comprehensive

income (debt instruments) is analyzed betwcen valuation differences ftom changes in amonized cost of tho instrument, differences
resulted from changes in the prevailing exchange rates, differences resulted from changes in the fair value of the instrument, and
differences resulted from the impairment of the financial assets. Those changes are recognized in the income statement as income on
loans and similar items regarding changes in amortized cost and differences rclated to changes in the exchange rate arc recognized as
other operating income(expense), changcs in fair value are recognized in equity(Other comprehensive income./Financial assers aI fair
value through other profit and loss).

Evaluation differences resulting from non-monetary items include profit and loss resulting from changcs in fair valuc such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit and loss, while evaluation differences resulting fiom equity instruments classified as fina;ci;l
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized as other comprehensive income.

D. Financial Asscts
D. t. tt oPnition

The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following catcgories: fair va.tue through profir or loss (FVTPL), fair value through other
comprchenslve income (FV lOUl) and amonizrd cost. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

D.2. Classilicrtion
Financial as(el{ Policies aDolicd stertinc from .l nuarv 01.2019:

At the time of initial recognition, the bank determines the classification of finarcial assets to be classified as amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial asset classified as amonized cost ifthe following two conditions are met and was not recognized at inception date by the bank as
fair value through profit or loss:
- Tle financial asset is retained in the business model offinancial assets held to collect contractuat cash flow.

9



FOR TIIE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTf,MBER 2O2I

- The contEctual terms ofthe financial assct at specific dates result in contractual cash flows ofthe asset represeoted only in the principalfina[cial instrument amount and the return.

Financial
at inccpri ;::"af|*;::'* '""me 

if thc followins two conditions are met and was not rccogrized

- The model offinancial assets held to collect contractual ca5h flows and salcs.- Tte contractual terms ofthe financial assgt at specific dates result in contractual cash flows of the asset represented only in the principalfina[cial instument amount and the retum.

' The dcbt instrument that was not allocatcd at the initial recognition al the fair value through profir or loss is measured at the fair value
through other comprehensive income ifboth ofthe followin! conditions arc met:- The financial asset is retained in the business model that aims to collcct contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset.- Thc contractual terms of rhe financial asset on specific dates result in cash no*, or tr," 

^r"i -J noi ."pr"r"r,"a onty ue principal
debt ard the retum.

' upon the initial recognition ofall equity instument that not held atfairvalue rhrough profit and loss, the bank may make an irrevocablechoice to present subsequent changes in thc fair value throu the other comprehcnsive income statement. This choice shall be madefor each investmert individually.
o The remaining financial assets are classified as investments at the fair value through pmfit or loss

In addirion, ulon the initial recognition,. the bank may inevocably allocale a financial asset measured at the fair value through profit or loss,although it meets the criteria ofclassification as a financial asset ar amortized cost or ar fie fair value through othei comprehensive incorne,ifthis action substantiarry reduces the inconsistency that may arise in the accounting measurement.

HOUSING AM) DE\'ELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO'TIIE CONSO LIDATED I'IN NCIAL STA TEMENTS

Busincss modcls Evaluation
Followi debt and u instruments are classified and mcasurcd accord to the followi

2\
the

The bank prepares, documens a.nd approves a business modet in accordance with the requircments ofthe IFRS 9 in a way that reflects
Bank's strategy to man the financial assets and their cash flows a-s follows

s of Measurcmcnt According to thc Ilusincss)t cth od

NIod cl

l'inancial Instrumcnt

Fair Valuc
Amortizcd Cost Through

Comprehcnsive
Income

'fhrough Profit or l,oss

Equity Instruments

Itron

One-time inevocable
choice at the initial

Normal transaction of equity
lnstruments.

Dcbt Instrumcnts Business model ofassets held to
collect contractual cash flou,s.

Business model of
assets hcld to collect
conbactual cash flows
and sale

Business model of assets
held for trading.

l'inancialAsset Business Modcl Basic Charactcristics
I'inancial assets at amortized cost Business model of fina[cial

assets held to collefi
contractual cash flows

The busi ness model is aimed to retain the
financial assets to collect rhe contractual cash flows
of the investment principal amount and rhe
revenues,

. The sale is an cxceptional action comparing to
thc purpose of this model and the terms of the
standard represented in $e deterioration in the
creditworthiness of the fi nancial inslrument issuer.. Less sales in tems offrequency and value.. The bank performs a clear and reliable
documcntation of the rationale ofeach sale process
and its compliaoce with thc requirements of the
Standard.

t0
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Financial asscts at [air value through
comprchcnsiyc incomc

Business model of financial
assets held for thc
collection of contractual
cash flows and sale

. Both the collection of contractual cash flows
and sales are complementary lo rhc objective ofthe
model.
. Sales are high (in rerms offrequency and value)
compared lo thc business model held for the
collection of contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at fair velue through
profit or loss

Other business models
include (rrading -
managing the financial
assets bascd on lair value -
maximizing cash flows
through sale)

. The business modcl is not aimed ro rctain the
financial asset for the collection of contractual or
this retained for the collection of contractual cash
flows and salcs.
. Collecling contractual cash flows is an
exceptional action comparing to the model
objective.
. Ma[aging the financial asscts at the fair valuc
throrjgh profit or loss to avoid inconsistency in
accounttng measurement

ns betwccn Finarcial I mcnts

The bank shall evaluare the business model goals on thc ponfolio's level io which the finarcial asset is rerained, being the way that reflects
both the methods of work management and information provided. Thc information to be laken into consideration while evaluating the
business model goals include the following:

- The approved and documented policies and the objectives ofthe portfolio in addition to applying such policies in practical reality,
specially whether the managemcrt strategy focuscs only on collecting the contractual cash flows ofthc asset and retaining a cefiain
retum rate to meet the dates offinancial asscts' maturity with the dates of the liabilities' maturity thar are funding such asse6; or
rather on generating cash flows through selling such a-ss€ts.

- The method ofevaluating thc portfolio's performance and reponing the same to thc top management.- The risks affecting the business model performancc including the nature ofthe financial asseti retained within such model and the
method ofmanaging such risks.

- The method ofevaluating the performance ofwork managers (fair value and/ or retums on the portfolio)- Frequency, valuc and timings of sales' transactions in the previous periods; the roasons of such transactions; as w€ll as thc
expectations regarding the future sale activities. However, the informalion ofthe sales' activities arc not taken into consideration in
isolalion., but rather as a part of a comprehensive evaluation of the method of carrying out the bank,s goals regarding managing
financial assets and how cash flows are generated.

The financial assets, which are retained for the purpose oftrading or thosc which are managed and evaluated based on the fair value, are
calc!lated by the fair value through profits and losses bccause they are not rctained for the purpose ofcollecting cootractual cash flows and/
or s€lling financial assets.

Evaluating whether the asset's contractual cash flows represent payments that are only Iimited to the original amounr ofrhe instrument and
[he retum.
For the purpose of carrying out this cvaluation, the bank defines the original anount of the financial instrumcnt as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial rccognition. The rctum is defined as the considerition ofthe time value ofmoney, the lredii risrs attached to thc
original-amount during a cenain period oftime, other basic lending sks and costs (such as the risk of liquidity and adminisrrative cosrs),
arld profit margin.
For de bank to determine whether the asset's contactual cash flows are payments that arc limited to the asset and retum on the flnancial
instrument' the bank puts the contractual te.ms of thc instrument intq consideration. This includes evaluating whether the linancial
instrument includes contractual terms that may change thc timing or amount ofcontmctual cash flows, which may lead rc non-acceptance
ofsuch terms.
For the purpose of carrying out the above evaluation, the Bank needs to take the following into consideration:- Potential events that may change the timing or amount ofcontractual cash flows;- Characreristics of the financial leverage (ratc of return, time limits, currency. . . )- Terms ofprompl payment and extcnsion oftime limits;

- Tlre terms that may limirs bank,s ability to claim cash flows fiom cenatn assets;- The characteristics that may amend the consideration ofthe time value ofmoncy (re-csl.imating the return rate on a periodical basis).
The bank does not reclassiry $oups of financial assets unless the busincss model is changcd, which ra.rely happens, or does not happen
exccpt infrequently or when the credit capacity ofone ofthe debt insruments declines at amonized cost.

narcial assets and liabilities are offset when the bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognizcd amounts and it tends to senle
is amount on a net basis, or realize thc asset and senle the liatility simultaneousiy.

u.
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Repos and rcverse repos agreements related to treasury bills are netted on lhe balance sheer and disclosed under..treasury bills and othergovemmental notes" caption ofthe balance sheet.

I,-. F-inancial I)crivativ€s I mcnts and hcdsinp ercountins
. Deriva(ives are initially rccognizcd at fair value or thc date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are su bsequcntly re-measurcdat theirfair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted markelprices in active markets, including recent market tmnsactions, ard valuationtechniques, including discountcd cash flow models and options pricing models. as appropriate. AII derivatives are carricd as assets whenfair value is positive and as liabililies when fair valuo is negative.

'Embedded derivatives are Dot isolated ifthey were includcd in a finarcial instument thd falls under the financial assets definition as perIFRS 9 "Financial tnstruments.

'Rccognizing tlre profits and losses rcsulted from the fair value dcpends on whother the derivative is a covering insrumcnt provision andacmrding to the nature ofthe covered item, the bank crassifies some ofthe derivatives as one ofthe fouowi;;:

: I::l 5d_i,:! ^"1$ 
fair vatue of recognized ass€rs and tiabilities or confirmed commitments (fair vatue hedging).' KIsx ncoglng ot tuture highly cxpected cash flows related to a recognizes asset or liability oi related to * i^p-""t"a transaction (cashflows hedging).

. Hedging accounting is used for provision derivative fo. that purpose. At the iniriarion of rhe transaclion thc bank documenrs thi riatio
objectives.of risk man"g.r""i-J,r," *"egy of having different h ;11Jii,i1,l[:f;#11,.1]l
the bank documents the estimation ofwhetheithe derivaiive used in ng the changes in the fairvalue or cash flows ofthc covered items.

l-. t. F air valuc hc dsin s
The changes in the fair value of qualified derivarives_provisions for hedging of thc fair value are recognized in the income sratemen! thiswith any change in the fair value relared ro the risk ofihe covered asser; l;;ility.

relaled hedged items are added to the net retum and cffective
ome from financial asscts at fair value through profit and loss.
in the previous paragraph are added to the net income from

lfthc,hedging is no longer following th€.hedging accounting procedures, the modification added to the book value of rie hedged itemsrecorded by the arnortized cost method. this is through.chargin-g'it against r;c profirs and los"r urong itr" y"u. iiir is niairrity. emenamensin hedged equiry instrument's book value remain *irtrin tlJstiretritaers' eq,liry tl ir has been excluded.
F.2. Cash flows hcdcino
The effective Pan in the changes in the fair value ofthe qualified derivative provision to hedge the cash flows is recognized as shareholders,equity, while the profit and losses related to the ineffeitive part are recognized immediately as (net income from financial assets at fairvaluo through profit and loss) in the income statement.

The arnounts accumulated in the shareholders'equity ale trarsierred to the income statemenr in thc same period that $e hedged item has
1n 

efr:cl on profits and losses, profits and lossei riated to the effective part of the currency tr""ri"r, 
^[J "pil""lre added to the nerfinarcial assets at fair value through profit and loss item.

r sold, or when
rders,equity in :i,H:.1"'J,;"ll;
saction is finall
sharehorders, e ex,ecled to occur

ofhedging accounting are being recognized in the (net income from financial assets
me statement, the profits and losses rcsulted from thg changes in the fair value is

rosses resurred rrom rhe chansed in the rair varue or 
jl:'U,lXT"j*';:: 11',J,1ff".'d'ilff 1,il:;::l;t'i: *fii1"T"",T:f:"11:through profits and losses.

I2

on price is considcred ro be the best instrument to evaluate the fair value on thc
nless the fair value ofthe instrument on that dare is indicated depending on the
modules. When the bank has a long term transaction, its fair vaiuc is siecified
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using evaluation modules that their inpurs may not all be fiom the published markel rates or prices, those financial instruments are
recognized according to transaction price which is the best indication of the fair value- Although the value calculated from evaluation
modules may be different, and the difference bctween the transac(ion price and the amount rcsulted from the modulc is not immediately
recognized as first day's profits and losses and it is listed as other assets in the case of loss, and as other liabilities in the case ofprofit. The
liming ofrecognizing the deferred profit and loss is spccificd scparately for cach case through is arDortiilation on the trarsaction or when
it is possible to identiry the instrument's fair valuc using published market's inputs or by approving it when adjusting the trarsactions, the
instruments is mcasured by the fair value, the subsequent changes in the fair value are immediately re.ognizcd in the income statement.

II. Intcrcst Incomc and Expcnsc
Interest income and expense for all interest-bcaring financial instruments, exccpt for those classified as financial asse6 designatei at fair
value through profit or loss, are recoglized within 'interest income'and 'interest expense' in the income statement using the effective
interest method. The effective inrerest method is a method of calculating thc amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial tiability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that cxactly discounts
cstimated firture cash paymcnts or receipts through the expectcd life ofthe financial instrumcnt or, when appropriate, a sho(er year to the
net carD/ing amount ofthe financial asset or financial Iiability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank cstimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms ofthe financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but docs not consider f,rture credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between panies to the contract that are an integral part ofthe effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Interest incomc on loans is recognized on accrual basis except for the interest
income on non-performing loans, which ceases to be recognized as revenue when the recovery of interest or principle is in doubt and are
rather recorded offbalance sheet as follows:

when it is collected and this is after rcdecming all dues of consumer loans and personnel mortgages also small loans for economic
activities.
For corporale Ioans, interest income is recognizcd on a cash-basis after the bank collects 25 7o ofthe rcschcduled instalments and when
these installments continue to be paid for at least one year. If a loan continues to be performing thercafter, interest accrued on the
principal then outstanding starts to be recognized in revenues. Interest thar is wriften off prior ro the date when the loan becomes
performing is not recognized in profit or loss cxcept when lhe total balance of loarL prior to dat date, is paid in firll.

I. Fc€s and Commissions
Fees charged for servicing a loan or facility, are recognized as revenue as the service is provided. Fees and commissions on non-performing
or impaired loals or receivables cease to be rccognized as income and are rather rccorded offbalance sheet. Thcse are recognized as revenue
- on the cash basis - only when intcrest income on those fecs and commissions that are arl int€gral part of the effective interest rate of a
financial asset are treated as adiustrnent to the effective intercst rale of that financial asset

Commitment fees received by the bank to originate a loan are defeded if it is probable that the bank will enter inlo a specific lending
arrangement and are regarded as a compensation for all ongoing involvement with the acquisition ofthe financial instrument and recognized
as an adjustment to the effective interest rate If the commitmenl expires without the bank making the loan, the fees are recognized as
revenue on exprry.
Fees related to dcbt instruments which are measured at fair value are recognized under revenue at initial recognition. The fees for promotion
ofjoint loans a-re rccognized within revenues upon completing the promotion process without retaining any pafl ofthe loan by the bank, or
if the bank maintains a part thercof with the actual interest rate available to other participants.

Fees arld commissions that are eamed on negotiating or participating in the negotiation ofa transaction in favor of another entity, such as
arrangements for lhe allotmcnt of shares or another financial instrument or acquisition or sale of an enterprise on behalf of a client, arc
recognized as revenue when the transaction has been completed. Administrative consultations and other service fees are usually recognized
as revcnue on a straighFline basis over the year in which the service is rendcred. Fees from financial planning management and custodian
services provided lo cliens over long year are usually recognized zls revenue on a sEaight-line basis over rhe year in which these services
are rendercd.

J. Dividcnds
Dividends are recognized in the income statement when the bank's right to receive payment is established

K. Purchase & e Agreemcnts. and Resale & Purchase Agrccments
Financial instruments sold under repurchase agreemenls, are not derecognized from the books. These are shown in the assets side as an
addition to the "treasury bills and other governmental notcs" line item in the balance sheet. On the other hand, the bank's obligation arising
from financial instruments acquired under resale agreements, is shown as a deduction fiom the 'treasury bills and other governmcntal rlotes '

tl
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liDe item in the balance sheet. Differences between the selling and repurchase price or between the purchase ard resale price is recognizcd
as interest expenso or incomc throughout the ycar ofagreements using the effective interest rate method.

L. Impairment ofFinarlci.l Assets
The bank assembles debt instuments in groups with similar crcdit risk based orr: tlre type ofthe bar*ing product as per the retail product,
the clients as per the corPorate loans, and the recognized credit agency's classili cat ioni as pcr the balancii at banks ard sovereign debt.
The bank classifies debt instruments into thrcc phases based on the quartitively and qualitarive criteria provided in the (Cent;l Bank of
Egypt) CBE'S insfiucrions issued on Feb- 26, 2019.

The bank estimates, on thc date offinancial statements, the provision ofthe financial instrument's impairment losses for at a value that is
equal lo the expected credit losses (ECLS) for lhe lifctime ofthe financial instrument. except for tle d;bt insrruments with low credit risks
or otherwise debt instruments whose credit risks did not significantly increase, at the finaniial position date. since the initial recognition.
The bank coosiders ECLS to be a potential weighted estimation ofECLS, which are estimated is follows:
ECIS are estimated in the first phase by calculating the cuftent value ofthe total cash deficit calculated based on the historic probability of
default rates as amended by the expectations of macro-economic s €narios' average that woutd be the rates ofeconomic growth, inflaiion
and unemployment for twelve months as pcr the debt inslruments in the first phasJor the lifetime ofole assct as per the s;ond ;hase.
As per the credit-impaired debt instuments (third phase), ECLs arc calculared based on the diference between the asset,s total book balance
and the current valuc ofthe future exp€cted cash flows.

Commitments related to loans and financial guarantees arc considered as among the default value when calculated.
ECLS arc calculated for the contrdcts of flnancial guarantees based on the diflbrencc betwcen thc payments expected to be paid to the
guarantee holdcr less any other amounts that the Bank expects to redeem

The bank shall not move the financial asset from thc second phase to the first phasc unless all the quafltitive and qualitadve elements ofthe
first phase are met.

Financial assets .t fsir value through the other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through thc other comprehensivc income, whcther they werc listed on the Stock Exchange with
inactive transactions or not listed, by determining thc fair value through one of the acc€pted technical melhods for determining the fair
value. However, in case ofnot being able to determinc $e fair value ofsuch stock throug;h a reliable method, they should be measured at
replacement cost.

At the date ofeach financial position, the value ofthc debt instruments' ECLS arc eslimated by the bank and recognized in the statement of
profits aJld losses, whereas thc rest ofdifferences like the change in the fair value arc recognized in the other c-omprehensive income. In

uld be expressed in the statement what was previously charged during previous
ed rhat any increase should be comprehensive iniomc. As pe. thi eqrriry
iffe.ences ar.e recognized at fair ncome till the asset is disposed, and in iuci

case, all those diffcrences arc carried to the retaincd camings.

M. Goodwill
Goodwill (Positive, Negative) represe[ting in the arnounts resulted Aom the acquisition ofsubsidiaries companies and has been
calculated based on the difference between the cost ofacquisition and the fair vilue ofthc net assets ofthe;cquiree al the
acquisition date.
The positive goodwill is recognized at cost minus any losses resulted from the impairmenl in the value ofgoodwill while the
negative goodwill is recognized directly in profit and loss.

N. Evaluation ofHousine Proiects
The cost of works under constructions includcs the cost of allocated lands for housing projects, thc cost of the consructions thercin, rhe
bonowing cosls that are capitalized duriog the borrowing pcriod until related work is inishca ana dl related cxpenses as work undcr
constructions arc considercd onc ofthe qualified assets to be charged with the borrowing coss which should be no more capitalized for the
projects that its core activities ne€ded to make it ready for its identified purposes or for ielling it ro other.

- Finished housing units are evaluated at lower ofthe cost or fair value; the fair valuc is evatuated in thc light ofdetailed studies. In casc
the fair value is less than the cos! Ihe difFcrence is charged to reduce "profits ofhousing projects" itcm irithe income statement. In case
ofan increase in thc fair value, such increase shall be credited to the income statemeni io the extent previously charged to the income
statement.

- The cost and sclling pricc ofhousing units in some distinguished projects are calculated according to the privileges in location and area
for each unit with no cffect on the project's total cost.

O. lnvestmenls Dropertv
Investments property is represcnted in land & Buildings owned by the bank for gain rental revenues or capital appreciation. Therefore it
doesn't include real-estate assets used in the bank's operations or which was reccived in settlemenl of the bank';liability. Investment is

l4
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accounted by the same method applied for fixed assets in which investmcnts property are rccorded at historical cost and deprcciated using
straight line method using appropriate dcprcciation rate and recognizing impairment loss if necded.

P. lntansiblc Asscts
P.l. Comou r Drosrams
Expenses related to improvement & maintenance of computer programs are recognized as expenses in income statement when incured.
Recognized as an intargible assct expenses related directly with definile programs and under the bank control & expected to generate
economic benefits which exceed its cost for more than one year. Direct expenses includes labor cost in the program improvement team in
addition to appropriate average of related general expenses and it is recognized as an improvemenr cosr in the expens;s that leads to an
increased expansion or performance ofthe computer program more than its original standards, it is added to the progrrun cost.

ComPuter programs' cost which are recognized as an asset are amonized over its life time ofnot more than 4 years.

P.2. Other iotansible assets
Represented in thc intangible assets other than goodwill and computcr programs for cxample (trademarks, licensg and rental conhacts
bencfits).

Othcr intangible assets are recorded by acquisition cost and is arnortized by straight line metiod or the cconomic benefis expccrcd, along
its estimated useful life. Considering assels with no definite useful life, they are not amortized but its impairment loss is yeaily e*amineJ
and recorded (iffound) in the incomc statcment.

O. Fircd Asscts
Land and buildiogs comprise mainly branches and offices. All fixed assets are carried at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and
impairmcnt losses. Historical cost includcs expenditures that are directly attributable to the acq!isition of the ilems.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized separately, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measu.ed reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses arc recognized in profit or loss within" other operaling expenses" during the financial year in which they are incuned.

Depreciation is charged so as to write offthe cost ofassets, other thao land which is not depreciated, over their estimated usef,ll lives, using
the straight-line method to the extent oftheir estimated residual values based on the following annual rates:

' Re-establishing expenses related to rhe rented bralches are amoniz€d through the esrimated production life or the year of the rent
contracts whichever less,

. Facilities and installments are deprcciated over 3 ycar's year.

' The assets' residual values and useful lives are rcviewed, and adjusted ifappropriate, at each balance she€t date. Assets that are subject
to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changcs in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset's carying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount ifthe assct's carrying amount is greaier
than its estimated recovemble amount. The recoverable amorlnt is thc higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and valueln use.
The recoverable amount ofan asset is the higher ofthe asset's net realizable value or value in use. Gains and losses on disposals are
d€termined by comparing proceeds with relevant carrying amount These are includcd in profit or loss in other operating income
(expenses) in thc incomc statemeot.

S. Rcntrl
Payments are recorded in operating rent account a.ffcr deducting aDy discounts received from thc lesser in the expenses in the income
statement according to straight line method within thc contract year.

l5

R Non-Fin{ncial As$ct Imp.irrrent
Assets without definite useful life arc not smortized & they are being tested annually for impairment. Asscts are tested for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicated that the book value may not be rccoverablc.

Then thc impairment loss is recognizcd & aad the carDiing amount ofalt asset is reduced to the extent thal such carD/ing amount exceeds
recoverable amount. Thc recovemble amount represenb the higher ofthe asset's net selling value or value in us€. In order to estimate tie
impairm€nt, asset isjoincd to smallest possible cash gcncrating unil

Non-financial assets with impairment are bcing reviewed to assess whether or no! all or pafi of such impairment loss should be reversed
through profit and loss.

'I'. Cash and Cash Eauivalents
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W. Emolovccs Benefits
W.l. Pension Liabilitics
The bank is committed to pay the contributions to lhc Social Insurance Public Authority, with no other liabilities after paying thes€
contributions Those contributions are recorded yearly in the income statement in its maturity year and are listcd as labor beoefits.

The bank has insurance fund for the employees ofthc bank, which was founded in 1987 working according to law no. 54 for year 1975
and its executive rcgulations, in the purpose of granting compensation and insurance benefits for the membirs, this pension fu;d and its
amcndments are implemented on all ofthe employees of the bark's head officc and its branches.

The bank is committed to pay tie annual and monthly subscription to the fund according to the funds regulation and its amendments. No
other liabilities on the bank after the pa),ment ofthe subscription. Those subscriptions are recognized as administrativc expenses when they
come due- The prepaid subscriptions are recognized as assets to the limit that the deposit leads to reduce the future paymenl.s or to a refund.

W.2. Retirement Lirbilitics
The bank has applied a specified medical system for its employecs and the retired ones. According to the above mentioned system, the
bank's Iiabilities are representcd in the differencc betwecn both the present value of liabilities in the bilancc sheet date and the prisent value
of its assets including settlements r€sulted from actuarial profit-/loss and also the cost of previous service. Those liabilities ari determined
annually by independent actuarial expert using the "estimated added unit approach" and are determined through cstimaled future our cash
flow applying interest rates on bonds with maturities similar to that of the Iiabilitics in "orher liabilities" itcm.

Actuarial profit/loss resulted from settlements together with amendmenLs in the medical system are charged to the income statement ifit,s
nol more than l0oZ oathe value ofthe asset or 109/o ofthe defined benefits liabiliries, whichever is higher and in case profirs (losses) is more
than the pcrcentage, the increment is added (deducted) to the income statement over what's left from the working yiars.

The cost of the previously mentioned service is chargcd directly to the income slatement as (general & admini$rative expense) unless
changes that have been made on the policies state that worker should sray for a specified year, in this case the cost ofthe scrvice is amortizcd
using straight-line method.

For rhe purposes ofthe cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' marurity from the
date ofacquisition; they include cash and balanccs due from central bank ofE$/pFother than rhose within the mandatory reserve, currenr
accounts with banks and financial assets other thar fair value through profit and Ioss.

U. Provisions
Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognized rvhen the Bank has a present legal or conslructive obligarion as a result
ofpast events, it is more likely tharl not thar an outflow ofresources will be requ ired lo settle the obtigation and the amounl has been reliably
estirnated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in seftlement is determined by considering
the class ofobligations as a whole.

A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in thc same class of obligations is
remote. When a provision is wholly or partially no longer required, itshall bc reversed through profit and loss underother operating income
(expeDse). An approp atc interest rate is used to measure the present value of liabilities' payments that are dctcrmined to be settled afrer
one year liom balalcc sheel date. This interest rate is not affected by the taxes' rates which reflect the cash time value and ifit's due in less
than a yea, estimated valuc ofthe liability is calculated and ifit has an imponant effect, it's recognized by the present value.

V. Finrncial collaterrl contrscls
Financial collateral con[act is the contract issued by thc bank to collateral loans or debit current accounts presented to its customers from
other parties and it is required from fie bank to pay certain payments to compensate the beneficiaries ofcaried loss because debit payment
in the due date according to the dobt instmment's conditions. These linancial collatcrals are presented to banks, financial institutions ard
other parties on behalfoftie bank's customers.

Initial recognition in thc financial statements is recorded by the fair valuc al the date of granting the collateral which may reflect the
collateral fees. l^ater on, the balk's liability is measured by the virtue ofthe collateral on the basis ofthe initial recognition amount less
the amortization to recognize the collateral fees in the income statement by the straight line method over the collat;ral lifetime. or the
best estimation ofthc needed payments to adjust afly financial liability resulted from the finarcial collaterals on the balance sheet date
which is higher. These estimations are specified according to the experience in similar transactions and historical losses and also by thc
management's judgment. Any inuease in the liabilities resulted from financial collaterals, is recognized in the income statement as
other operating revenuos (expenses).

W.3. Share bascd oavments

t6
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The bank operates an cquity-seflled, shate-based compensation plan. The fair valuc ofthe employees services received in exchangc for the
grant ofthe oPtions is recognized as an expense. The total amount to be expensed ovcr the vesting year is determined by refererrce to the
fair value ofthe options granted, excluding the impact ofany non-market vesting conditions (for exarnple, profitability targets). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number ofoptions that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
datg the entity revises its estimated number ofoptions that are expected to become exercisable. It recognizes the impact ofthe rcvision of
original estimates, ifa.ny, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustmcnt to equity over the re-maining vesting ycar.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal valuc) and share premium
when rhe options are exerciscd.

X. Income Taxes
Income tax expcnse on the year's profit or loss includes the sum of the tax currently payable and deferrcd tax and is recognized in the
income statement, except when they relale to items that are recognized directly in equitll in which case the tax is also recogniied in equiry.

Income tax is recognized based on net taxable proflt using the tax rates applicable at the dare ofthe budget in addition to tax adjustments
for previous years.
Defcrred taxes is recognized on temporary differences between the carD/ing amounts ofasseB and Iiabilities in the financial statements and
the conesponding tax bases uscd in the computation oftaxabte profit.
Deferred tax assets alld liabilities are m@sured at the tax rates that arc expectcd lo apply in tlre year in which rhe liability is settled or the
asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivcly enacted by the end ofthe reponing year. Deferred
tiu assets are generally recognized for all deductible tempo.ary diff€rences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will bc
available against which thoso deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assers is reviewed at
the end ofeach reporting year and reduced to the extent thal it is oo longer probablc tha[ iufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part ofthe asset to be recovered. Howcver, when it is expected that the tax benefit will increase, the carrying amount ofdeferred tax
assets shall increase to tho extent ofprevious reduction.

Y. Borrowine
Loans obtaincd by thc bank arc initially rccognizEd at fair value net oftransaction costs incurred in connection with obtaining the loan-
Borowings are subscquently mcasured at amorlizrd cos! with the diffcrence betw€en nct proceeds and the value to be paid over the
bonowiflg year, recognized in profit or loss using the effcctive interest rate method.

Z. Caoital
Z.l. Cost ofcapital
The issuance expenses that are related directly with issuing new shares or shares ofacquiring entity or issuance options, are presented as a
deduction from shareholders' equity and the net rcvenues aftcr tax.

Dividends are recognized when lhe gcneral assembly ofshareholders approves them. Dividends include the employees' profit share and the
board ofdirectors' remuneration as prescribed by the bank's anicles ofassociation and the c.rporate law.

AA. Trust Activities
Trust activities are the assets' opposition and managing for individuals and funds. Its values and profits are not rccognized in the bank's
financial statements because they arc not owned by the bank.

7,,2. l)ividcnds

AB. Comna tivc l-isurcs

3.

Compamtive figures arc reclassified, where necessary, to conform with changes in lhe cunent year's presentation.

M{o.sement of Fin.ncial Risks

The bank, as a result ofconducting its activities, is cxposei to various finalcial risks. Sincc financial activities are based on the concept of
acc€Pting risk ard analysing and managing individual risks or group of risks together, rhe bank aims ar achieving a well-balanced risks aod
relevant rewards, as appropriate and to reduce the probable adverse effects on th; bank's financial performance. Tle most important types of
risks are credit rislq market rislq liquidity risk and other operating risks. The market risk comprises ioreign currency risk, interesr rate riik and
other pricing risk.

The risk management policies have been laid down to dctcrminc and analyses the risks, sct limits to the risks and control them through reliable
methods and uP{o-date systems. The ba[k regularly reviews the risk management policies and sysrems and amendmcnts rhereto, so $at they
rcflect the changes in markets, products and s€rviccs ard the best up-ro-Jate applications.
Risk are managed in accordarce wilh preapproved policies by the board of dircctors. The risk management department idcntifies, evaluates

and covers financial risks, in close collaboEtion with the bank's various operating units The board ;fdirectors provides wrinen rules which
cover certain risk areas, such as credit ridq foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and the use of derivative and non-derivative financial

t'1
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A. Crcdit Risk

A.l. Mcesurins thc (lrcdit Ilisk
Loans ,ln Iacilities to banks nd clicnts

Debt Instrumcnts

The bank is exposed to the credit risk which is the risk resulting from failure of the client to meet its contractual obligations towards the
Bank- The credit risk is considered to he the most significant risk for the bank, therefore requiring careful managemint. The credit risk
manifests itself in the lending activities and debt instruments in bar*'s assets as well as off balanie sheet financial instruments, such as
Ioans commitments. The credit risk management and control are centralized in a credit risk management team in Bank Risk management
depanment and reported to the Board ofDirectors and head ofeach busincss unit regularly.

In measuring credit risk ofloan and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparq/ Ievel, the Bank's rating system is based on three
key pillars:

. The 'probability ofdefault' by the client or counterparty on its contuactual obligations.
' Current exposures to the counterparty and irs likely future developmen! Iiom which the bank derive the (exposure at default).

These credit risk measurements, which rcflect expected loss .The operational measurements can be contrasted with impairment allowanc€s
required under EAS and in accordance with the Central Bank ofEgypt's instructions approved by the board ofdirectors on 16 December
2008' which are based on losses that have been incuned at the balance sheet data (the 'incurred loss model') rather than expected losses.

Tlre bank assesles the probability of default of individual counterparties using intemal rating tools tailored to the various categorics of
counterparty. They have been developed internally and combine statistical analysis with credit;fficer judgment ro reach the relevant credit
ra-ting^basis. Clients ofthe Bank are segmented irlto four rating classes. The bank's rating scale, which is shown below, reflects the range
ofdefault probabilities defined for each rating class. This mea$ that, in principle, expos;s migrate between classes as the assessment of
their probability of default changes. The rating tools are kept under review afld upgraded as ncicessary. The Bank regularly validates the
performance ofthe rating and their predictive power with regard to default evenls.

Bank's interlal retinps scrle
Bank's Ratine Description ofthc erade

I Good debts
2 Normal watch_list
3 Special watchJist
4 Non-performing loars

The position exposed to default depends on the amounts that the Bank expects to bjoutstandiig when delay occurs- For instancg for the
Ioans, thc position would be the nominal value; for commitments, the Bank includes all the amouns already withdrawn in addition to the
otler amounts that are expected to be withdtawn till the date ofdelay, ifany.
Presumptive loss represents the Bank's expectations ofthe anount ofloss whe[ the debt is clairned in case ofdelay. This is expressed by
the loss percentage in the debt, which certainly differs according to the type ofdebtor, the priority of claim, and ft; availability of
guarantees or other credit coverage mealN.

As per debt instruments, the bank uses extemal classifications or any equivalent in credit risks' management. However, ifsuch
evaluations are not available, similar methods a.re used to the ones applied to credit clients. Sr.rch inveitments in securities are considered a
means to obtain a better credit quality and at the same time it provides an available source for meeting the financing requirements.

A.2 limit control and mitiga tion policics
The bankmanages, limits and controls concentrations ofcredit risk wherever thev are identified in particular. to individual counterparties
and banks, and to industries and countries_

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount ofrisk accepted in relation to one borrower, or
groups ofbonowers. and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a rcvolving basis and subject to an annual or
more fiequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level ofcredit risk by individual, counterpanies, product, and industry
sector and by country are approved quarterly by the Board ofDirectors. The exposure to any one bonower including banks and brokers is
further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation- to rrading items such
as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored quarterly.

Exposlre to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowem to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations aid by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
Somc other specific control and Initigation mcasures are ouflined below:
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instruments. Moreover, the risk department is responsible for the year revicw of risk managemenl and the control environment
independeotly.
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Collatcrals
The bank employs a range ofpolicies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional ofthese is the taking ofsecu.ity for funds
advances, which is common practice. The bank implements guidelines on the accoptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk
mitigation. The principal collateml types for loans and advances are:

. Mortgages over residential propenies.

. Mortgage business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable.

. Mortgage finaacial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

. Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revolviog individual credit facilities are generally unsecured-
In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss the bank will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment
indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advarces.

' Collateral held as security for Iinancial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature ofthe instrument. Debt securities,
heasury and other govemmental securities are generally unsecured, with the exception ofasset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios offinancial instruments.

Derivativcs
The bank maintains strict control limits on net open derivative positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale contracts), by boti
amounl and term. At any one time, the amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are favorable to
the bank (i.e., assets where their fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives is only a small fraction ofthe contract, or negotiable
values used to express thc volumc ofinstruments outstanding. This credit risk exposure is managed as part ofthe overall Iending limits with
customers, together with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk
exposures on these iostruments, except where the bank requires margin deposits from counterparties.

Settlcment risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation ofa corresponding receipt
in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk
arising from the Bank market transactions on any single day.

Cornmitments Rclated to Credit
The primary pulpose ofthese instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required- Collaterals and standby letter of
credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are written uodertakings by the Bank on
behalfofa customer authorizing a third pafiy to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific tcrms and conditions -
are collateralized by thc underlying shipments ofgoods 1o which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan.

Commitments to extend crcdit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in thc form of loans, collaterals or letters of
credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total
unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is Iess than the total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit
are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity ofcredit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree ofcredit risk than shorter{crm commitments

.{.3. ImDairmcnt an d Provisions Policics
Policies The internal rating systems previously described focus more on credit-quality mapping from the inception of the lending and
investment activities. In contrast, impairment provisions are recognized for linancial reporting purposes only for losses that have been
incurred at the balance sheet dato based on objective evidence of impairment due to the different methodologies applied, the amount of
incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statemcnts are usually lower than the amount determined from the expected loss model
that is used for intemal operatioflal management and Central Bank ofEg]?t's regulation purposes.

The impairment provision shown in the balance sheet at the period is derived from each ofthe three internal rating grades. However, the
majority ofthe impairment provision comes Aom the bottom two grads.

The table below shows the percentage ofthe bank's in balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated impairment
provision for each oflhe bank's intemal rating categories:

30t09t202 t
Bank's Ratins Impairment loss€s

provision nZ

Sjvo

tlyo
100% 100v"

Loans and facilities includes loans used limit and percentage ofloans agrecments, according to the volume ofexpected used limit in addition
to financial collateral conhacts.

Stage I
Stage 2
Stage 3

Loans and
facilitics 7o

gvo

66vo
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Classification of Classifi cation Sisnifi cancc
hc Ccntr^l nk

of Esvpt
Low risks

Average Risk
Satisfactory risks

Reasonable Risk s
Acceptable Risk

Marginally Acceptable risk
Watch list

Substandard

Doubttul
Bad Debt

The bank's policy rcquires the review ofall financial assets that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly when
individual.circumstances require- lmpairmenr allowances on individually asscssed accounts are determined by an ivaluatjon ofthe incr-rned
loss at balance-shect datc on a case-hy-case basis. and ars applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation ofits enforceabiliry) and the anticipaied reccipts for that individual account.

lmpairment loss provision is formed based on homogenous assets using the historical experience of loan loses. available personal judgment
ofbank management and statistical methods.

t worthiness the management makes sub-groups more detailed according to the Central
classified to detailed conditions relying greatly on customer's information, activities,

financial position and his regular payments to his debts

The bank calculates the provisions needed for impairment ofassets exposed to crcdit risk including commitments rclated to the credit basedon special percentages determined by CeDtral Bank ofE$.pt. ln the c
worthiness as per Cenlral Bank of Egl4l over the impiirment loss
Ccntral Bank of Egypt approved by the Board of Directors as on Fe
banking risk reserve is included in orlrers,equity deducted from
basis with the increase and decrease, which equals the increase i

And this are categorics ofinstitutional worthiness according to intemal ratings comparcd with Central Bank ofEgypt,s ratings and rates ofprovisions needed for assets impairment related to credit ri;k:

I
I

I

I

I

2

3

4

4

4

I

2
3

4
5

6

7

8

9
IO

Reouired
Drovision

ratc
Zero
tyo
tvr
z%o

3Vo

5Vo

20vo

50yo

t00yo

Intcrnal classifi cation
Sisnificance

Performing loans
Performing loans
Performing loans
Performing loans
Pcrforming loans

Regular watching
Watch lisl

Non-performing loans
Non-performing Ioans
Non-performing loans
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Itcms Exposed to Credit Riskg
Due from b.nks
Loans rnd facilities to customers
Rctail l,o.ns
Overdrafts
Crcdit cards
Personal Loans
Real Estate Loans

Corporate Loans:
Overdrafts
Direct Loans

Syndicated Loans
Spccializcd Loans:
Direct Loans

Finrocial rssetsi
Debt lnstruments
Othcr asset!
Tot.l

Neither past dues nor subject to impairment
Past due but not subject to impairment
lndividually subject to impairmenr
Total

Lcss:
Impairment loss provision
lnterest in suspensc

Retail
Corporate

30t0912021
EGP

E,420,1l9J0l

642,535,090
57,055,125

6,272,373,584
4,262,664,944

4,046,012,274
!,7 t6,264,679
t,112,422391

10,732,520,507

2,999 545,637

31n2t2020
ECP

1,8 r9,923,350

641.726,7 58

44,504,3'76

4,869,358,296
't.754,640.464

3,373,781,910
1,152,542,'10 t

157,432,3t8

10,109,946,180

2.208,849,586

401,298,925 455.240.231

A.6. Loans and Facilities
Following is the position ofloans and facilities balances to the ctients in terms ofcredit solvency

(2.069,900,78r)

22,3 9 I r3 I8,962,t24,08t

30to9nozt
EGP

Loans & edvanccs
to customcrs

20J72,899,012
t,652,9E5,824
2,550,8 111

24,576,687,0t3

(2,r84,6s9,794)
(16,90r,t06)

21,050.229 054

I8 204

Stagc 3
Lifctimc

30 Septcmber 2021
Stagc I Stagc 2

l2 Months Lifctimc
'[otal

13.5t8,997.974 t,132.769.909 1 5 ,641-927 _669
6.853 .90r,038 520,2t 5.915 8.914,'159,344

20J72.899,0t2 t,652,9t5,824 2,550,802,r77 24,576,687,0t 3

A.5. Maximum limits for Crcdit Risk beforc Collatcral.

46,728,A72,458 37,t88,948,t70

3t 
^2n020EGP

Loans & advances
to customers

r7,866.015,190
I ,4'72,087 ,18 1

1 ,'t 12,126,683

Loans and facilities impairment reached EGP I13,031,981 compared to EGP 187,257,052 in rhe compararive period. Item No. (18)
Includes additional information about provision for impairmenl losses on Loans and facitities ro banks and cuitomers.

periodi

990,159,786
1,560,642,191

2t
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Stagc 3
Lifetimc

'l'otal

49-456-4'10 69,875,735 183.234,191 302,596,396
49',7 040 669 t24,462 ,277 I 260 590.452 r,882.091 ,398546,497,139 t94.J38.012 t,443,824,643 2,184,689,794

Retail
Corporate

Retail
Corporate

Retail
Corporate

3l Dcccmbcr 2020
Stagc I Stagc 2

12 Months Lifctimc

I1,906,t28,548

Stagc 3
Lif€tim c

'l otal

I .092.996 825 13,1 66,410,t25
619,129 8585.959 .886_642

761,344,7 52
704.142,429 7

17,866,0r5,190 1,172

duri criod

283.7 58.929
t,7r2,t26,6t3 2t,050.229.054

Stagc 3
Lifctimc

'l'otal

rmcnt I rs n

3l December 2020
Stage I Stagc 2

12 Months Lifctime

I r9,635,182 't4,985,367 255,150,868
909 687,949 267,080,584 443,3 60,831

l,029J23,lJl 342.065.95t 698,51t.699 2,069.900.78t

J0 Scotcmbcr 2021
Stagc I Stagc 2

12 Months Lifctime
Stagc 3
Lifctimc

'I otal

8,420, 9,30t 8.420.1t9.301

(s9,211\ (s9,217)
___q,!2q!q{24 E,420,060,024

449,771,417
t ,620,129,364

l)uc from banks
Crcdit ratine

Good debts
Normal watchJisr
Special watch-lisr
Non-pcrforming Ioan
Total
AllowsDcc for impairmeltt losses
Total

l-inancial asscts at amortized cost
Credit ratinq

Good dobts
Normal watchJist
Special watchJist
Non-performing loan
fotsl
Allowallce for impairmcnt losscs
Total

30 Scptcmber 2021
Stage I Stage 2

12 Months Lifetimc

10,'132,520,507

Stagc 3
Lifctime

'l'otal

t0,732,520,50'1

r0,732,s20,507
(4,500,r57)

10,72E,020J50
(4,500,157)

10,728,020,350

30 Seotcmber 202t
Slsgc I Stege 2

12 Months Lifetihe

E,420,1t9J0t 8,420.t r9J0l

t0,732,520.507



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

Rctail Loans & Facilitics
Crcdit ratinq

Oood debts
Normal watch-list
Non-performing loar
Total
Allowancc for impairmcnt losses

Totel

Corporatc Loans & ['acilitics
Crcdit ratins

Good debts
Normal watchJist
Non-pcrforming loan

Totrl
Allowance for impairment losses

Total

Cood debts
Normal watchJist
Special watch-list
Non-performing loan
'l'otal

Allowancc for impairme[t losscs
Totsl

Good debts
Normal watch-list
Special watchlist
Non-performing loan
Totrl
Allowance for imprirmcIt losses

Total

Oood debts
Normal watch-list
Non-performing loan
Totrl
Allowrnc. for imp.irmcnt lossqs

Total

30 Seotembcr 2021
Stagc I Stagc 2

12 Months Lifetime

tl,5 t 8,997 ,97 4
I ,132,'t 69,909

'I'otal

l! .5t8,991 ,914
I,132,769,909

990. t59.786 990 1s9,786

l\514,991,974

to,1s6A79L
Lll2,?69,909

(69,87s,?3s)
990,1s9,786 15,64t,927.669

(181,23,1,t9l) 566,396)
11.469.541,504 1.062.89J.17{

30 Seotembcr 2021
Stagc I Stagc 2

12 Months Lifctimc

6,853,901,038
520,215,915

806,925,595 15,139.36r,2?3

StAgc 3

Lifetimc
'l'otal

1,560,642.391

6.851.901,038 s20,2ls,9ls r,s60,642J9r
(497,040,669) (124,462,217) (1,260,s90,4s2)
6,356,860,169 395,753,61E 300,051,939

(l,ti82,091,398)

3l Dccember 2020
3.8t9,923.350 3,8 t9,923.350

1.819.923.350 1,8 r 9,923,350
(66,286) (66,286)

1,6r9,857,064

l'inancial assets at amortizcd cost Stage I
l2 ll'lonthsCredit ratin

3,8r 9,85?,064

3l Decembcr 2020
Stagc 2

Lifctime
Stagc 3
Lifctime

'l'otal

r0,r09,946,r80t0,109,946,180

r0,109,946,t80
(8.sr0,68s)

l0,l0l,435,495

Stag€ I
l2 Months

1t.906.t28.548

3l Dcccmbcr 2020
Stagc 2

l-ifctime
Stagc 3
l,ifctimc

I,092.996,825

10,101,435,495

Total

I I,906,t 28,54E
767,344,152

t,092,996,825
161.344.752

I1,906.128.5JE 167,344,152 1,092,996,825

(255,150,868)
I J,766,470,125

(l t9,535,rE2) (7 1) (149 ,77 I ,411\
I r,786,493,366 13.3r6.698,70t

2i

692,359J85 837,845,957

TIOUSING AND I)EVELOPMENT BANK

Stegc 3
l,ifctimc

Rctail Loans & Facilitics
Crcdit ratins

6,853,90I,038
520,215,915

t,560,642J91
8,9!4,159,344

7,052,665,946

10,109,946,1t0
(8,510,685)



HOUSING AND DEVI,LOPMENT BANK
NO'IES TO TIIE CONSOI,IDATED FINANCIAI, S1'A'I'EMEN'TS
FOR 'I'IIE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMIIER 2O2I

Corooratc Loans & Facilities
Crcdit ratins

3l Dcccmber 2020
Stagc I Stagc 2

12 Months l,ifctimc

5,959,886_642
'704,1 42,429

Stagc 3
Lifctimc Total

Good debts
Normal watch-list
Non-performing Ioan
'fotal
Allowance for impairmcnt losscs
Total

Land
Housing units

IIotel

5,9s9,886,642 619,r29,858
6r9.r29.8i8

s,959,886,642
704,742,429
619,129,8sE

(267 r) (1,620,1
437,66t,84s 115.769.021 5,663,629,56s

4.7. Acouisitio ofcollaterals:
Assets owned through possession are classified among other assets in the halancc sheel
Those assets are sold whenever practical according to The CenEal Bank of Es/pt regulations to dispose those assets in a specified period

Book Value

(909,687,949\
5,050,198,693

30t09t2021
EGP

t6,s19,860

311t212020
ECP

16.491,260
45,000

49,t 38,972

24

704,142,429 1,283,75A.929

65,066,457 65,676,232



IIOUSING AN]) DEVELOPMENT BANK
NO'TES TO TIIE CONSOI-IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
}.OR TTIE NINT] MONl]IS ENDED 30 SEP'TEMBER 2O2I

Geogrophicsl scgments
The following table represents the analysis ofthe most importalt bank's credit risks measured al the book value, allocatcd according to the
geographical segment at 30 September 2021 While preparing this table, risks were allocate/ to the geographical segments according to the

areas related to the bank'5 customeas.

Arab Rcpublic of Egypa
Alerrndrir-

Dclta and sinei uPPcr EgYPt

Due from bank
Loans rnd Advance to Customers
Ret il Lof,ns:
Overdrafu loans
Credit cards loans
Perconal loans
Rcal Estatc loans
Corporate l,oens:
Overdrafts
Direct loans
syndication loarN
Specialized l,oans:
Other loans
l-inancial rssets
Debt Instruments
Othcr Assets
Total ,s of30/09/2021
Totalas of 3l/l22020

40'7 ,298,925 40't,298.925

Grcatcr C&iro

8.420.1 19.301

294,828,989
28,890,084

2,26t ,3't I ,383
4,244.601.980

2_22'.1 .212,587
3 ,154,9'13 ,60't
| ,172,422,391

to,7 32.520,50'l
2,923.',t23,101

35,867,962,t57
28,621,888,844

276,077,835
23,685,231

2,636,535,313
2.9 t8,7 57 .364

t,589,109,470
441,576,615

5 t,106,782
7,936,64E,630
5.164.21 t.087

7 t,628,266
4,4'19,8|

I ,17 4 ,466,868
r,099,305,600

299,7 50-2t7
lt9,' 4,45't

Tolal

8,420,119,301

642,535.090
s',t,055,t26

6,27 2,3'13 ,584
8,262,664,9M

4 -046-012.27 4

3.116,264,619
| ,172.422,39 t

10,'t32,520,50'1
2-999 ,545,637

46,728,a72,45A
17. t88.948, t70

25

24,715,752
2,924,060,97 I
3.402,848,239
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NO',t US TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

Thcfollowing table represents the alalysis ofthe most important bank's credit risk in book value, allocated according to thc customers, activity(EGP)

F'i flncisl

Ilstitutiorrs

Ill(luslrirl

IrstilUliorrs (lornnlrrci,ll Ser vicrs

IlcAl Estetr

Activity

Governmentel

Scctor

Olhcr

Activitirs Individunls 'lb ra I

from banks

rs &Flcilitirs

ctail

redit Cards

Ioans

Estale

rporatc

erdrall

Direct

Fyndicarcd

Sp!cieliz.d Loros

Dtect

FinrllciIl {sscts

Debt Instrumenrs

Oth€r As!cts

554,9r,7,66

268,62E,714

t,3 rt,45E,734

46,915,758

4,306,472

2t 1,619,670

1,772,t39,665

3EE,402,8t 
'

852,991.479 230,776,|t

I,455,2 t5, t88

I ,t12,422,391

2]E,a'7?,082

842 928 il45

791,6t4,674

293,23 t ,233

I 9il ll7 102

7.865. t51.633

401.298,92s

10,732,520.50

t78 '7 4t) 76

E3,005,896

1E,573,t59

IJ9

642,53s,090

57,055, t2

6.272,373,s84

I,262,664 ,944

258 314 005

t,420,119,301

642,535,090

57,055,126

6,272,373,584

8,262,664,

4 ,046,072,2't4

3 ,7 t 6,264,679

t,172,422,391

407,298,925

10.732.s20.507

2 999,545 637Iotnl ns of30 Scptrmbcr 2021
2.353,674,786 51,222,231) 2,t60,542,47 6 1.0,)1,068.56r 3,70r,J42,542 2.sE1,5J3.209 19,183,720,741 I10,825.164 t5,1r2,9 42,1 49 46,128,812,458Total as of J I Decenlber 2020
J,J0{,687,78t 47.659,87E I,916,041,Ii26 t,1J4,26,1,194 2,522,ti46.1Et 1,45t,770,177 t 2,925.7E 1.550 l0?.152.J77 I3,s69.543,899 37,188,94E,t 70

26

ln*'"'""'



IIOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTDS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENI-S
}.OR 'I'HE NINf, MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

B. Markct Risk
Thc bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is thc risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency arld equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level ofvolatility ofmarket ral.es or prices

B.l. Markct Risk M surcmcnt Tcrhnioucs:
Value at risk
The bank applies a "value al risk" methodolos/ (vAR) to its trading portfolios, to esrimate rhc market risk of irs positions
held ard it's been monitoring daily.

VAR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on the current portfotio rcsulting from adverse market
movements Il e\Jlresses lhe'ma\imum' amount thc bcnk might loso, but u$ing ccnoin lcvcl ofconfidcncc (989i,) Thcre
is therefore a specified statrstical probability (2"/o) that acuJal loss could be greater than rhe VAR estimate. The VAR
model assumes a ccnain 'holding year' until positions can b€ closed (10 days) before closing the opining quarters, and it
is assumed that thc movement ofthe market during the rctention year will follow the same movement pattern thar occurred
during the previous ten days.

The bank is assessing the historical movements in the market prices based on volatilities and conelations data for the past
two years while collecting the historical data for the past five yeirs and the bank applies thcse historical changes in rates,
priccs and i0dical.oE dircctly to tie cunent positions, and (his way is known as a simulated historical method and the
actual outputs are monitored on regular basis to measure thc appropriate assumptions and factors used to measure VAR.
Tte use ofthis approach docs not prevent losses outside ofthese limits in rhe evcnt ofmore significant market movements.

Strcrs testing
Stress Testing Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of losses that could arise under extreme market
conditions. Thereforc, bark designs stress tests according to its activities by using typical analysis to specific scenarios.

l].2. F'orcipn cxchanec risk
The Bank takes on cxposure to the effects offluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its Iinancial
position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level ofexposure by currency and tn aggregate for both overnight
and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The table below summarizes the bank's exposure to forcign currency
exchange rare risk and baak's financial instruments at carrying arnounls, categorized by currency

30 Scptcmber 2021
Financisl Assets:
Cash and balances with Cenual Bar*
Due from banks
Loans & facilities to customers
Fi1lancial assets
Financial assets at amonized costs
Financial asses at fair value through
comprchensive income

Otler Financial assets

Totsl liDancial essets

Financial liabilities:
Due to banks
Cuslomels deposits

Other Financial Iiabilities
'f otal fi nancial liabilities
Nct [inancial position as of30 Scptcmber 2021

4 I,500,000 3.800.000

33.928,806
r.3 r6,605

5,700,000

US Dollar Euro Stcrling Pound

'1,2'18,'1 t2
699,184

8.422.522

417,0t5
544.790
91.888

8,2'7 t

255,695
1,059

l5r,l38
2.491,40'7

4,235

302

other

r0,551,693 255,025 2,6s1,082

38,50'7,631
3s,0t5,2'7 5

8,685,7t0

5,008,903
4,240,108

190,525

260,280

1,087

1,628,576

100,446

82,208,622 9,639,536 26t.367 I,729,022

3l December 2020

Total financial assfis

Total fi nancial Iiabilities

Net financial position as of3l December 2020

r0,93?,80? 914,1s7

76,366,724 18,062,633

3,658 924,060

234.549 1,53t,570

6,869, r32

27

1,s76,098 9,66{ 1,097,421

Other
Currencies

93,146,429

83"235,856 t9,638,731 214,213 2,635,997



IIOUSING fu\D D E\'ELOPMENT BANK
NOTES'TO'TII E CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMEN'I'S
FOR THE NINE MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2t

B.3.Intcrcst ra{c Ilisk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that rhe fiiture cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because ofchanges
in market interest rates. Fair value intcrest rate risk is the risk that the value ofa financial instrument will 0uctuate becaise
of changes in market interest ratcs. The bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations ;n rtre p.eraiting tereis oi
market interest ratcs on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a resutt of suci .ha,ges
but may profit decrease in the evenl that unexpected movements arise. Theioard sis limis on the Ievel ofmismatch"of
interest rate reprising rhal may be undertakcn, which is monitored daily by Risk Dept.

Thc follorving table sulurrarizcs thc risk that the bank firces the change in the retum value including the book value of
financial instruments allocated based on the re-pricing dates or due dales price whichever is sooner:

LJp to
I moIth

More
than

I motrth
to

3 mooths

More than
J monlhr to

I yerr

3,205,000
t,085,728

6,1t9,603
39,83)

6,389,601
t,420,060

24.5'15.68'1

t6,215.694
4 t7.168

4,t6t,514

5,931,076 146,680
44,399

3,t17,44t

25,114.724
46t,s6't

9.336,9n

695,892
5,t89,s34

4,952
2,437,938

'7,897
6,985,978

626,250
12.954,787

460,591
9, t5?,114

3s6
28.607,838

17.9 t I ,396

71,899,618

696,248
56.t76,0't5

r,099,696
t6,92't.599

Finrocirl Assets:
Cash and Due from Central Bank
Due from banks
Loans & facilities lo customers
FinatrEiol trEce&t
Fair value through other comprehensive income
Fair value through profit and loss

Other aJse6

Tolsl finrncirl asscts

5,t15,228
1,41t,050

3,36t,2t4

6,t99,516
2r,239,916 12928,91t

Firencialliebilitirs
Due to banks
Customer's deposits
Olher loans

Other financial liabilities

Totrl fil|erci.l lirbilitics
Rc-pricing gep

7.7t0,265
s,890J7t 2,.t45,6ts 7,61222a 22512,7tt

1739s,762 5206.161 2.J80J62 (1J32.602)

A. Liouidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated wirh its financial liabilities
when they fall due and to replace funds when tlrey are withdrawn. The conslquence may be the failure to meer obligations
to rcpay depositors and fulfill commitments to Iend.

Liquidity Risk Managemert
The bank's liquidiry mamgemcnt process, as carried out wirhin the bank and monitored by Risk Maragemenr
Department, includes:

' Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This includes
replcnishment offunds as they mature or is borrowed by customers. The bank maintains an active presencc in glolJ
moncy markets to enable this to happen.

' Maintaining a pordolio of highly marketable assets that car easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow.. Monitoring.balance sheet liquidity ralios against internal and requiremenls ofcentral bank ofEgypr.. Managing the concentration and profile ofdebt maturitir s.

Monitoring and repo(ing takc the form of cash flow measuremcnt and projecrions for the next day, wcek and month
respectively, as these are key ycars for liquidity management. The staning ioint for those projections is a, unutysi. oi
the conrractual maturity ofrhe financiar liabirities and Ge expected colrection date ofthe finaniiar asses. -

Ri monitors u[matchcd medium-term assets, the level and t]?e of un_drawn lendingco facilities and the impact ofcontingent liabilities such as sandby leners ofcredit ani
gu

28

(Valucs in Egliptian thousands pounds)
Morc t[ao Witbort Totel
I yarr to roturo
5 yerrs

36J7t,4s9
(23,749,.186)

7,1,t99,61t

2Jrs6J40 1,552,N2 t0,0rr5m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOI,IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I'S
FOR 'I'tIE NINE MON'TIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

C. CaDital \I anas cmcnt
The Bank's objectives when managing capital. which consists of another items in addirion ofowner's equiry stated in
balance shcet are:

Funding approach
Sources ofliquidity arc regularly reviewed by a separatc team in the Risk Management (Asse6 & liabilities), ro maintain
a wide divcrsification by cunency, provider, product and tcrm.

The available assets to cover all thc liabilities and the Ioar's obligations include cash, balaflccs with Central bank, dues
from banks, treasury bills, other govemmental securities and loans and advances to customers and banks, customers,
loans &at are due within a year are extended partially for thc ordinary activity of lhe bank, In addition, some of debt
instrxments, treasury bills and govemmental securities arc mortgaged to guaraniee the liabiliries. thc bank has the ability
to cover the net unexpected cash flows through the sale offinancial securities and finding other funding resources.

Due from banks
The fair value of floating rare placements and ovemiBht deposits is their carrying amount. The eslimated fair value of
fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows rrsing prevaiiing monel, morkot intcrcst rotcs for dcLb
with similar credit risk ard remaining maturity

Loans and overdrafts to brnks
Loans and banking facilities represented in loans not from deposits at banks. The expected fair value of tle Ioans and
facilities represents the discounted value offuture cash flows expected to be collected. Cash flows are discounted using
the cunent market rate to dctermioe fair value.

l,oarts and Facilities to customers
Loans and advances are net ofprovisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advaflces rcpresents the
discounted arnount ofestimared future cash flows expectcd to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted al current
market rates to determine fair value.

Financial assets
Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets hcld at amortized cost; financial assets classified at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Fair value for assets held at amortized cost is based on
market pric€s or broker/dealer price quotations. wherg this information is not available, fair value is estimated usinl
quoted market prices for sccurities with similar crcdit, rnat trity and yield characteristics.

Due to othcr benks and customers
The estimated fair value ofdeposits with no srarcd maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand.
The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted in an active market is based
on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar remaining mirurity.

. 
bank,s branchcs exist.
it can continue to provide retums for

. To maintain a strong capital base to suppofi the development of its business.
Capital adcquacy and the use of regulatory capital arc monitored daily by the Bank,s maDagemen! employing
tcchniques based on the guidelines developcd by the Basel committee as impiementcd by th" ccn-rra t-t oiEgl,pi
for supcrvisory purposcs.
The required information is filed with the Authority on a quarterly basis. central Bank of Egypt requires the
following:

' Holding the minimum level ofthe issued and paid up capital ofEGp 500 million.
' Maintaining a ratio oftotal regulalory capital to the risk weighted asser or above the agrced minimum of lOyo.

The bank's branches are working under the rcgulations ofthc banking sector in Egypt.

The nominator ofcapital adequacy standard consi$s of two tiers:

29
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NOTES'TO'IIIE CONSOLIDA'II]D FINANCIALS'I'ATEMf,NTS
lrOR 'l'tlE NIr\-E MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

Tier One:
Tier one, consisting of paid-in czpital (aftcr deducting the book value of treasury shares), and retained earnings and
reserves resulting fiom the distribution of profits wilh the exccption of banking risk reserve and deductinB ther; from
previously recognizcd goodwill and any transferred loss.
Tier Two:
Qualirying subordinated loan capital, which consists ofthe equivaleht ofthe risk allocation according to the principles of
credit issued by the Central Bank ofEgy?t for not more than L257o oftoral assets and liabilities weig;ted wi;h ris( loans
/ deposis suppon in excess ofthe schedule offive years (with consumption of2oolo oftheir value irieach year ofthe last
fivc years ofthe schcdule) and 45% ofthe increase between the fair value and book value for each ofthc financial assets
at fair value thrcugh other comprehensive incomc and at amonized cost in subsidiaries.

\vhcn calculating the total dominalor of capital adequacy, it shall nor exceed the capiral cushions (eualif,ing
subonlinated loan capital) for share capital and loans not to increasc (deposiLs) suppon for halfof tt e share caiital. 

- -

Assets are risk weighted ranging from zero to l0O% classified by thc relation of the debtor to all each asset to reflect the
crcdit risk associated with it, taking the cash collateral account. These are used for the treatment of off balance sheet
items aftgr adjustsnents to reflect the nature ofcontingency and the potential loss ofthose amounts.

The bank had complied with all thc local capital re4uirements during rhe past two ycars.

Tho following table summarizes basic and syndicated capital components and the capital adequacy ratio.

30t091202t
ECP

3v 12t2020
EGP

Capitrl adequacy ratio according to Bascl II
Capitrl
(Ticr I capital) basic capital
Paid-up capiral
Amounts rerrved for capital inc.ease
Reserves
Retained eamings
Total deduction from basic capital
Othcr comprehensivc incomc

Totrl b.sic capital
Nct ilcome for the period
Total prid up c.pitll and rdditiorat p.id up cepital rnd retaincd cartlings

(Ticr 2 capital) syndicrted cepital,
45oZ ofSpecial Reserve
Impairmenr provisions for loans, facilities and contingent liabilities
50% ofdisposals from tier ( t) and rier (2)
Total Syndicated C.pitrl
Total crpital

I,sr8,000,000
253,000,000

4,876,145,8{6
390,699,924

(31 t ,923,962)
146,055,7r 8 t25 175 t61

6,t11,978,526 5,241,312,138

1,03,1,619,96t I845.041.554

7,846,598,4t7 1,092,355,692

4,20s,2J5
43,1,t77,903

(J r,s00)

4,205,23s
3t5,407,506

(27,000)

438,J5t638 319,5E5,741

29,001,883,245
1,528,194,476
6,448,E25,500

25,232,600,486
1 ,252,' t ,525
6,448,825,500

.t6,97t,903,221 32,934,t3't,5|

22.10 22 5t

Based on the bank's consolidated fina[cial statement according to the Central Bank of ES/pt regulations on l8 Dccember
2012.

l0

Risk-weighted assets and contirgent liabilitics:
Total Credit Risk
Total Market Risk
Total Operational Risk
Total
Capital Adcquacy r.tio (7o)

t,265,000,000
3?9.500.000

3,77 0,494,024
t00,6t8,290

(393,475,343)

8,2t4,950,125 't,4t t,941 ,433



IIOUSL\G AM) DEVELOPMENT BA.\K
NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S'I'ATEMENIS
FOR TIIE NINE MONTIIS ENDED 30 SI,PTEMBER 2O2I

D. Finencial lcvcragc

Tier one capital after exclusioDs

Total on-balance shect exposures. derivatives contracts and financial papers
operatrono
Total ofFbalance sh€et cxposures.
Total exposures on-balance shect and off-balance sheet.

Fin.nci.l leverage ratio

30t09t2021
DGP

3l t12t2020
EGP

7,8.t6,598,487 7,092,155,692

70,,11r,80{,000 59.7E0.378.000

790.684.000 I 86'l 866 000

12,232,488 6t,648,244,000

t0.t6 Il.)0

4. Critical Accounting Estimatcs and Judgmcnts

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect rhe reported amounts ofasseb and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluared and based on historical experiencc and odrer factors, including
€xpectations of future events thal are believed to be reasonable undq the circumsrances arld available info.

A. Impairment losscs on loans and facilitics
Based on personal basis The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairmcnt at least on a quarterly basis in
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Bank makes judgments as to
whether there is ary observable data indicating liat there is a measurablc decrease in lhe estimated firture cash flows
from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio .This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment (Egyptian Pounds) status
of borrowers in a Bank. or national or local economic conditions (hat correlate with defaults on assets in the Bank.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credir risk characteristics ard objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the po(folio when scheduling its future cash flotvs. The methodology and
assumplions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differcnces between loss cstimates altd actual Ioss experience.

B. Fair value of derivstives
The fair values offinancial instruments that are not quotod in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and psriodically
reviewed.

C, Incomc taxes
The bank is subject to incomc tax in a number of tax circlcs for its branches which requires the use ofsignificant estimates
to dctermine the total income tax provision. Thcre's a number ofoperations and accounts that are difficult to determine
its final tax expcnse accurately- The bank crcatcd provisions for the expected results of the tax inspection rhat is being
conducted and to account for probable additional tax. When rhere is a difference between the final results ofthe tax and
the pre-recorded amounts, thesc differences will bc adjusted against the income tax and the defened income tax provision.

ll
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5. Scsm€nt Analysis

A. Sesmcnt Analysis of activities
Segmcnt activity includes operational procedures ald $e assets that are used in providing banking scrviccs and managing
the risk related to it and the retum relevart to fiat activity that may diffcr from any other activities and the s€gment
analysis ofoperations according to banking operarions includes the following:

Corporatq medium &smrll sized coterprise
This includes currert accounts (debit/credit), deposits, loans & facilities aod finarcial derivarives.

Invcstments
Irrcludes merging ofcompanies, financing companies restructuring & financial tools.

Ret{il
Includes current saving & deposit accounts, credit cards, and personal & rcal estate loans.

Othcr activities
Includes other banking activities.

Traosactions b€tr,veen business segmenls are on normal commgrcial terms and conditions ard it includes operational
assets aIld liabilities as presentcd in the Banks's balancc sheet.

Rew,tu drrl ExDcnscs accordins to scsm cnt activity

Thc period ended on 30 September 2021
Segment activity rev€nucs
Segment activity expenses

Scgment op€ration results
Unclassified expenses
Net income for the period befor€ toies
Taxes
Net income for the period

The period endcd on 30 September 2020
Segment activity revenues
Segment activity expenses
S€gment operation results
Unclassified expenses
Nct income for the year bcfore taxes
'laxcs

Net income for the period

lnvestmetrt
I ,777,140,032
82t.663.908

955,476,t24

Individuals
r,53 t,087,900
t .052,632,462
478,455,438

Other activiaics
I 219,97 t ,88t
524,189,t24
755,1t2,7s7

Invcstment
t,278,076,876

343,419.3t 5

914,637,561

Individuals
I A99,478,9M
1,152,705,9tt
346,7'12,9t5

Other activities
t,249, 1,45t

616,13t, r06
633,613,345

Corporate
r,591,006,530

1,25 r.875,697

339,r30,833

Corporate
I,51'1,0t4,t31
I,262.072,356
255,00r,775

tcP
Total

6.r79,206,U3
3,650,961,r91

252E21s,r52

(301506210)
2,226,738,942

1645,t 47 347',1

1.5&,591,595

EGP
'l'otal

55,14,4 I I J62
3J71J55,765
2,170,08s597

1,902.224

2,171,987,t21
(522,333,712)

1,655.654,109

EGP

Period codcd on 30 S.pl.mbcr 2021
RevatruGs &cxpGnsc! in accordence
with gcogrephicol scgltlent
Geographrcal segmenl rcvcnu€s
Ceographical segmenl expenses
Seclor's profit results
Net income for the period before taxes
Taxes
Net income for the period
Ass.ts aod li.bilitics ilr rccordrtrce with geogrrphicrt scgmcnl
Assets of geographic segmcnt
Unspecilied Assets
Totrl rssets
Liabilitics of geographic sctment
Other items ofthe Geographicrl segmcnt
Depreciarions
lmpairment r€versal

4,832,84 t ,902
3,047 ,t 55,8't3
t,7t5,086,029

945,996,t4t
69t,307,209
2s4,689,532

400,36't ,700
213,404,3t9
r86,963,3

6,179,206,343
3,9s2y'67.401
2,226,73E,942
2,226;t38,942
(645,r47J47)

l -581 *s9 1.59

AIcrrtrdrir, Dalla&
Sioei Upper Eg) pt Total

3,566,6r 2.1s0

3,566,6r2,rs0
3 .469 ,648,967

Gr.alcr Ceiro

56.069,142,641

(169.446.464)
(r 09,014,443)

56.069.t 42.641
46.965 ,319,486

r r,855.92t,282

r r.855,92t,282
,9n,238,751

(r 7,5E9,534)

7 I ,491 ,68f 213
l206J66,srs

72.698,04r.788
62.346267,204

32

(5,455,769) 1t92,49t,7671
( 109,014.443)

B. Analvsis of Geosraphical Sesments
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Period crd€d on.30 Septemb.r 2020
Revenues &€xpenses itr sccordgflcc
wilh g€ogrephical scgm€nl
Ocographical segment revcnucs
Ceographical segment expenses
S€ctor's profit resuhs
Nel income for the year before ta\es
Ta)rcs
Nct income for the period
Asscb rnd lirbilitics in .ccordrnca with g.ogrrphicrl scgmcnt
Assets of geographic scgment
Unspecifred Assels
Tot l assets
Liabiliti6s of geographic segment
Other ilems ofthe Ceogrephiccl scgmcnt
Deprcciations
lmpairment

Alcrardrir, Delte&
Sinri tlpper f,gypt l otalGrcater Criro

45,672,044 ,53t

857.577,55t
632.369,474
225,208.0U

t 0.000,726,410

10,000,726,4 r0
I0, t45,5 t9,009

(r s.598,895)

5,544,44\3A
3,366.453,541
2.t77.98't,821
2.t 11 ,9E1 ,t2t
(522,333,'.t t2\
I,65s,654, r09

58,604.7 69 .9t 4
t,130,363,42s

59.735.r 33_339
5 r.014.853.056

( 182,172,688)
190,074,9t2

2,91t,98,966

2,931 ,998,966
2.903 .68t.2t1

(4,915,0 r 9)

4,289 ,'.|35,294
2,5 t5,266,3t4
1,774,468,910

397,t28,510
2r 8,8 r ?.6t3
t78,3t0,827

45.672.044.s3t
37,985,64s,810

(16t ,53t;t1 4)
t90,074,9t2



HOUSING AND I)f,VELOPMENT BANK
NO'I'ES TO 'I'IIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTIIS ENDf,D 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

6. Nct in rncomc

l'or'Ihc Ninc For The Nine
months cndcd at months ded at 30

30 Scotember 2021
EGP

Septembor 2020
EOP

Intcrest receivcd from loans elld similar items:
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investment not at fair value through profit or loss
Deposits and current accounts

Total

Cost ofDepositJ ard similar Expenses
Deposits alld current accounts:
BaDks

Customers

Total
Other financial institutions loans
Totrl
Net interest incomc

t ,7 42,802,872
2,931,618,565

415,497,869

1,s92,s66.660
2,345.225.338

384,66r,680

tr'ccs & commissions incomc:
Fees & commissions relatcd to credit
Financing fees
Other fees

Total
Fecs and commission expcnscs:
Other paid fees

Nct income from fces and commissions

Equity instrument at fair value through profit or loss
Equity instrument at fair value rhrough other comprehensive income
Total

5,089,919,306 4,322,453,618

?,112,888
2,5{t ,620,632

32.572.862
2,241,89'7,598

2,548,7t3.520 2,27 4,410,460
48,636,t299l 171,681

2,639,911,201 2,323,t06,589
2,450,00t,r05 t,999,347,089

l'or'l' c Ninc For The Nine
months cnd€d at months at l0

30 Scptcmbcr 2021
EGP

Seotem t 2020
EGP

4t,076,323
138,530,743
99,044,245

58,7'71,373
125,9'11 ,302
100,984,6r9

285,6sr,3 t t 285.721-294

(34,351,894 (3 r.523,651)
251,296,411 254,203,643

l-or'fhe Nine
months cnded at

30 Scptcmbcr 2021
EGP

2,330,942
J,306,621

For The Nine
months ended at 30

September 2020
EGP

1,649,333
r.305,06r

5,617,561 2.9i4,394

9. Nct i mc from fin ncial asscts at fair vsluc 1hroush Drofit and loss

Forex profit (losses)

Equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss

Net incomc from lintncial assets at fair valuc through prolit and loss

l'or 'fhc Ninc
months cndcd at

30 Scotcmbcr 2021
I]GP

12,478,336

33,790,t80

For The Nine
monrhs ended at 30

September 2020
ECP

t2-679.807
23,244-909

46,268,s16 35,924.716

7. Net fces & commissions incnrne

8. Dividcnds Incomc



NOTES TO THE, CONSOLIDA'I'ED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I'S
FOR TIIf, NINE MONTIIS ENDIID JO SEPTEMBER2O2I

10. Rcvcnuc from housine oroiccts

Sales of housing properties
Cost ofsold properties
Revenue from properties
Othcr housing revenues

Totrl

StslTcost
Wages artd salaries
Social insurances
Rctirement benefit cost
Operation utililies
Curr€nt expenses
Portion ofsocial and athletic activities
Donations
Others

Iotal administrative cxpenses

I2. Othcr oD€ratine r€vcnucs

lJ, Loans impair mcnt losscs

Loans and customer advalces
Duc from banks
Debt instruments -at anonized cost

Totrl

l'or -l'hc Ninc
mo nths cndcd at

30 Septcmbcr 2021
ECP
571,428,627

(221 ,26t,322',t (2t 4.344,588)

For The Nine
months cnded at 30

September 2020
EGP
582,880,050

347,161)05
69,278,608

368,535,462
45,996,722

416,445,91J 4t4,532,t84

For'l hc Ninc
months endcd at

30 Septcmbcr 2021
ECP
537,9t 9,667
13,l I9,96 t
r 0,753, t5

333,r97,42t
239,123,226

t,000,000
25,900,546
14,61t,169

For The Nine
months ended at 30

September 2020
EGP
455,l5l,62t
28,577,630
10,256,134

29t,703,789
225,108,t96

1,775,000
29,695,812
44,921,105

For The Ninc
months cndcd at

30 Scotembcr 2021
EGP

For The Nine
months ended at 30

Seplember 2020
EGP

Revaluation losses of assets and liabilities balances in foreign cunencies
with monetary nature other than held for trading or classificd at inception at
fair value through profit or loss
Gain fiom selling propenies, planets alld equipment
Reversal of impairment ofother assets and ba.nk,s projects
Others
'l'otel

(s,0s9,039)
2,053,931
I,132,734

9l,416,072

(2,126,6t9)
t2,120,521
3,740,980

I I t,295,788

12i.030.670

For T e Ninc For The Nine
mon(hs ended at J0

September 2020
EGP
t81,257,052

(5s,955)
2,813,815

months cndcd at
30 Scotc bcr 2021

EGP
(r r3,031,98r )

7,009
4,0t0,529

(109,0r 4,443) t90-074.912
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I l. Administrative cxDcnscs

t,255,6E5,775 1,087,789,287

90,t43,69E
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FOR TIIE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

I4. lncomc tax cxpcnscs

Currenl taiies

Deferred income taxes

Total

l'or'l'hc Ninc
months cndcd at

30 Scptcmber 2021
EGP

(646,668,731)
t,52 t,384

For The Nine
months ended at 30

Seorembcr 2020
ECP

(573,506,20t)
5t,t72,489

Eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable ro the equiry shareholders by rhe weighted
average number ofshares outstanding during the p€riod,

15. Earninss Pcr sharc

Net profit for thc period available for controlling interest
Weighted average number ofshares
Basic carnings per share

16. Cash and balanccs with ccntral bank

Cash

Due from central Bank within the required reserve percentage

Non-interest bearing balances

17. Duc from banks

Current accounts
Deposits

Provision of impairment losses

Central Bank (cxcluding obligatory reservc)
Local Ba*s
Foreign Banks

Non-interest bearing balances

Interest bearing balances (Fixed rate)

Current balances

[-or 'fhe Nine For The Nrne
month\ endcd at monlhs ed at 30

30 Scot€mbcr 2021
EGP

I,572,173.382
139,056,985

I t.3l

September 2020
EGP

t ,645,7 53,279
t26,500,000

t 3.01

3U09n02t
I]GP
94t,U3,120

5,448,160,042

3Ut2n020
EGP
'783 

,961 ,502
5,0t6,534.231

6,3t9.60J,162 5.800.495.731

6,389,603,162 5.800.495.731

30t09t202t
EGP

39,832,44s
8,380,2E6,856

(59,217\

3Ul2nO20
EGP
69,688.539

3 ,7 50,234,81 I
(66.286)

8,420,060,024 3.8t9,857.064

7,855,r51,633
531,034,272
23,874.1l9

2,t60,8 t9,912
1,615.2,14.984

43,792,t68

8,420,060,024 1.819,857,064

39,832,445
8,380,227,519

69,688,539
3.750, t68,525

8,420,060,024 3,819,857,064

8,420,060,024 3.8t9.857.064

36
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FOR'fIIE NINE MONTIIS ENDED30 SEP'TEMBER2O2I

Retqil
Overdrafts
Credit cards
Personal loars
Real Lstate loans
*Oth.r loans

Total
Institutions including small loans for cconomic activitics
Overdrafu
Direct Ioans
Syndicated loans

Total
Total Loans& facilities to customers

[,ess:
lmpairment of Ioan loss provision

lnterest in suspense

ron9Do2l
EGP
642,535,090

57,055,126
6,272)73,544
8,262,664,944

407,298,915

3ut2t2020
EGP
542,126,'7 s8

44-504,376
4,869,358,296
'1,754.640-464

455,240,271

15,64t,927,669 13,166-410,t25

4,046,072 21 4
3;t 16,264,619
I ,t72,422,391

3.373,783.9t0
3.152_542.701

'15'1 ,432.3 t 8

8,937,759,344 7 ,283,7 s8.929

24,576,687,013 2t,050.229,054

(2,181,659,7941
(r6,908,106)

(2,069.900,78t)
(18-204,192)

Current Balances

Non-currcnt Balanccs

22J75,1l9,t t3 18.962. r24,081

5,558,665,0t 5
19,0r 8,02 t,998

4,789.828,329
16,260,400,725

24576,6A7,0t3 21,050,229,054

3vt2DO20
EGP

2,25t,418.897
(t't9,t2t ,828)

(12.824.3 r0)
tt,'720,792

(1.292;7'70

2,184,6s9,194 2,069,900,781

* Supportcd loans arc paid rcgularly within the govcrnmcntal plan for sociablc devclopmcnt,

lmprirmetlt of loan loss provision
Movcftent ,Dalysis of impairment of lorn and facilities loss provision to customcrs

30togt202t
EGP

Balance at the bcginning ofthe period 2,069,900,7E1
Reversal oflmpairment loss 113,031,981
Amounts written offduring rhe period (8,960,79f)
Refunded amounts during the period 10,927,962
Foreign cunency revaluation diffcrcnce (2e!139)

Balancc at thc end ofthc pcriod

I9. F'INANCIAL INV ESTMEN'I' AT FAIR VUI,E TIIROUCII ROFIT AND I-OSS
30togD02t

EGP
3t lt2Do20

EGP

Equity instrument listed in srock market

Local companies' shares

Totel equity instrumena
Equily instrument unlisted in srock market

N4utual fu nd's instrument
'l'otal Equity instrumeot unlistcd in stock mark€t
Financial investment ponfolio managed by others
'f otal trading fi nanciel assets

55,388,767 5 t,535,175

55,388,767

11,516,042 20,635,i82

11,s76,042 20.635.i82
388,602.233 366,347.4t1
.161,567,042 438,518,768

1'l

I8. LOANS & FACII-ITII]S O CUS'TOMERS
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20. l-lN;\N(ll,\ 1.,\SSE1-S (O1'llr-R l llAN l llAT IN FAIR'l llllOUGH PROI Il'ANl) I,OSS)
30t09t2021

EGP
3ul2no20

f,GPl'inarciel asscts rt fair value through other comprehensivc iocome
Debt instrument :

Listed in stock market
Un@rned interest
Equ ity instrument :

Listed in stock market
Mutual fund's instrumcnt established according to the issued rates

Totel Finr]lcial assets at fair vrlue through other comprcheNive income

Finrnci.l asscts rt AmortiT-ed Cosa
Dcbt instruments -at amortized cost:
Debr instrumcnt (lisled)
Unearned interest

Selling ofdebt instrument wirh obligation ofrebuying

Provision of debt instrument impairment losscs

Total Fidancial essets et Amortized Cost
Total Financirlassetr
Current Balances

Non-current Balances

Debt Instruments - interest bearing (Ilxed)

19,536,653,590 18,137,364,'128

19,9?r.050.487
(6 t6,024,066)

r40,945,928
40,641,241

133 ,4'7 6.t 4 |

38.445,941

r0,732,520,507
(9r,207,160)

(1,4s8,742,818)
(4,s00,r s7)

r0,t09.946,180
(36.329.675)

(4.549,690,4s3)
(8,5 r0,685)

6,I7E,O7OJ72 5.515,415,367

25,114,723,962 24,252.780,095

25,533,096,793
t81,627,169

24,080,858,013
t7 t,922,082

25,114,123,962 24,252,780.095

25,s33,096,793 24,080.858,011

Fitretrciel esscts
rt fair value

througt olhcr
comprehctrsivr

income
EGP

18.737.364.728
t54,914,49t
(t.2s4,356)

(54,37 I ,271\

Fitrrtrcixl arsels
el Amorti?-rd

Cost

EGP
5,515,415,367

563,14t,670
4,548,n2

90,947,635
4,0t0,528

total

BalaDce st thc bcginning ofJsnurry l,2021
Net movemenl ofbuying and selling
Amortization of prcmium issuanc€
Change in fair value
Selling ofdebt instrument with obligation ofrebuying
Provision for debt instrument impairmenl

Brlarc€ es of 30 Scplemb€r 2021

B.lrnce ss of I Jrnu!ry 2020
Net movemenl ofbuying and selling
Amortiation of premium rssuance
Change in fair value

Selling ofdebt inslrumcnt with obligation ofrebuying

Belanre as o[ ]l Dccenlbrr f,020

Change in fair value ofequity instrument at fair value through othcr
comprehensive income
Totel

EGP
24,252,780,@s

I,4t 8,063, t61
3,293,fl6

(54,37 I ,273)
90.947.635
4,010,528

19,536,6s3,s90 6,178,070,372 ?.5,1t4,123,962

1,933,68 r,038
t 6,699,912,202

103.75 t,4t8
80. r78_285

(223,65 t)
ta,731,364,728 5,5r5,415,367 24,252,180,095

14,550,044,436
(9 ,t27 .975 ,601)

| 1,19t,904

t 6,483 ,72s,4 t 4
7 ,57 I ,956,595

r 3,39r,904
r01.75 r,488

t0.t78,265
(221,65t)

For The Nine
months

cnded at 30
ScDtcmber

2021

For The Nine
monlhs endcd

at l0
September

2020
EGP

5t,618,971

EGP

ls431t,2131

l8

t9,796,s95.9t9
(t ,231 .t 53,213\

ChetrBe in frir vrllre of equity instrumeols rt feir vrlu€ through other
comprehensive incoma

__l!!Jz!?zll __$.q!pL!_
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FOR TIIE NINE MONTIIS ENDED ]O SEPTEMBER 2O2I

Compaoy's tolal
li.bilitics !rilhout
owncrs'equity

EGP

290,820J63

30to9Do2t

ComDeny's (otal

EGP
340,028,2m

220,557,76

t,t04,010,E96

272,521,163

Companr's
rotel Profil

(loss)

EGP

45J06,376

Sharcs Valuc

EGP
4l,625,544

217,183,620

1,616,E54,063

565,45J,2t9
2.{,t t.716.-1,t6

Shrrcs Value

ECP
31,426,334

210,841,271

t,200,610,537

641,519,610
2.090.131.75t

2.258,208,921 4lt,r 83.066

6,tt7 t.509.t l2 368,5t 4,962

2,84J,606,316 27,154,299
19,949,423,663 12,264,t 45,432 2,537,1t8,1t5 489,758,703

Thc bank shares' in profits ofassociated companies in 30 September 2021 amounted to EGp 126,964,929

Company's totAl
lsset9

EGP
409,750,493

3,13s,068J14

I1,830.838,750

4,573,166JM

Shires
Pcrcen13g€

3sv.

24.E4yo

53,66yo

35,0s%

El-Tam€er housing and utiliries
company
El-Tamc.r Real Estate Finance
company
Hyde Park for Real Estare
D€velopment Company
City €dge company
Tot l

El-Tameer housing and utilities
company
El-Tameer Real Estate Finance
compa,y
Hyde Park for Real Estate
Development Company

City edg€ company
Tot l

Company's totrl
essets

EGP
22A,692,965

2,194 ,728,455

9,945,837,596

Compeny's lotrl
liabililies wilhout
onncrs'cquily

EGP

138,903,437

r,34s,9s3,036

It,{26,t {4,660

ll^2t2020
Compeoy's total

f,GP
229,8s9,350

152,846,412

1,616,104,s57

580,770,133

Comprny's
tolel profit

(loss)

EGP

26,917,616

Sbrres

Percctrlrge

3syo

24.80/"

53,660/0

35,05%

13,420,07 4

342,02{,8t1

l7l,5f0,l,tl
16,059,53,1,962 11,852,435,515 2,579,580,4s2 583.E92,672

Balance at the beginning ofrhe period/ycar
Charged during rhe period/year

Utilized during the period/year

Balance at tbe beginning of the pcriod/yesr

30109t2021
EGP

24,0t6.7 57

3Ut2DO20
EGP
24.016.751

3|t2t2020
EGP

886,711,560
890,196,528
680,4t7.0M
(24,0t6,7 s'7\

The total area of empry units' available for sale household units 193.385 meters. administrative and commercial buildings 16.809
thousand meters and the lands 2,410 million meters-

Ilousing Droiccts imoairmcnt brcakdown

(784,960)

24,016,7 51

39

2I. INVESTMF,NTS IN ASSOCIA'II]D COMPANII.:,S

3,690275,946 1,941,434J82

22. IIOUSIN-G PROJEC IS

Lands allocated for housing projects
Under Construction projects
Finished projects

Housing projects provision

Total 2,524,141,129 2,433,308,377

30109t202t
EGP

E83,858,448
928,619,311
734,835,t01
(23,231,797)

n,zrl,797



TIOUSING AND DEW]LOPMEN'I BANK
NO'I'ES TO THE CONSOLIDA'I'ED FINANCIAL STATDMENTS
}.OR I'IIE NINE MONTHS END}]D 30 SEPTE\IBER 2O2I

23. I N \'lts't ]I I.]NT S pttOpUtl',t'y

Total lnvestments

Accumulated Dcpreciation
Net book value at the bcginning of the period
Additions
Depreciation of the period

Nct book value at the cnd ofthc pcriod

Computers programs
Beginning cost
Additions during the period

Etrding.ost
Accumulated depreciarion at the beginning ofthe period
Depreciation during the pcriod

Accurrulated deprcciation at thc erld ofthe period
Nct book value at the cnd ofthc period

25. O',l ItER ASSE'IS

Accrued revenues
Prepaid expenses
Advanced payments for purchasing fixed assets
Notes receivable and customers
Insurance and consignment
Asscts reverted to banks in seftlcment ofdebts
Others

Total

463,3t3,611 434,74'7,045

3U09nO2t
EGP

l6l,26t,8t 2
(s4,641,086)

3l/l2t2020
EGP

151,133,4 t8
(46,532,215)

106,620,726 I l 1,20r,203
1,528,394

(8,108,871)(s,9s4,068)

Real estate iDvestments rented for the bank's companies and others with yearly renewal contracts and with depreciation calculated
for the rented units al 5yo finn^lly.
Real estate investments have been revaluated with the fair value by ar amount ofEGP 428.8 million as of3l December 2020 by
an evaluator with a recognizcd professional certificate and has an expcrience ofreal estate.

24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

30t09t202t
ECP

434,747,O4S

!ut2Do20
EGP

3'1 4,565,613
2 60, r 81 ,432

(330,372,566)
(48,611,024)

(260.417 ,299)
(69 ,935,26'1)

(378,983,s90)

84J30,087
(330,372,s66)

104,374,479

30togDozt
EGP

684,482,821
29,339,019
390,073,249

I ,379,409 ,428
25,740,025
69,066,457

42t,434,63E

3t fi2t2020
EGP

623- t 25.388
t8,144,206

291,97 5,205
818,667.048
r0.751,867
65,6'76-212

319,907.640
2,999,545,637 2,208.849.586

40

100,666,65E t06,620.7?6
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FOR THE NINE MON'THS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

26. Fixod assets

Balince rt I Jrnurry 2020
Cost
Accumulated Dcpreciation

Net book value rt l Jnnuary 2020

3l December 2020
Net book velue at I Jrnusry 2020
Additions
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Depreciation expense
Net book vrlue at 3l DecGmbGr 2020

Balarce st I Jnnusry 2021
Cosl
Accumulated Depreciation
Net book vslue at I January 2021

30 September 2021
Net book value at I January 2021
Additions
Disposals
Accumulatcd depreciation of disposals
Deprcciation expcnse
Net book valu€ at 30 September 2021

Balance at 30 September 2021
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Net book value nt 30 September 2021

r88,861,559

168,861,559
t0,632,t02

663,8',70

Buildings &
Constructions

EGP

705,481,5',73
181,240.057

Transponation
vehiclc

EGP

66,371,889
40.737,t 4 t

Machinery &
Equipmenl

ECP

580,687,628
351,t64,666

229,522,962
94,t55,871

5, t59,990
3, s 95,755

27,218,365
25,257,594

| ,679 ,839 ,064
647 ,89 5 ,'1 10

106,052,060
45,900,497

60, r51,563
t4,354,170

Lands
EGP

Furniture
EGP

Automated
systems

ECP

Facilities &
Installments

ECP
Total
EGP

r 88,861,559 524,24t,5t6 25,640,748 229,522,962 60,151,563 1,564,235 1.960,771 1,031,943,354

I t3,097,717 t6 9 Iti
r98,829,791 603.|1,712 t9.554,224 2t0.581.t22 65.342.815

524,241,516
121,966,E r I

21,452,'t69

12,983,396
32,621,242

t,564,235
399,599

1.960,7't I

9,554,410
1,03 t,943,354

255,537,105
38,280,625
26,r30,492

167,995,981

1,107,334,945

668,831 2,894,903

1,295,003 8,620,2',78

198,829,?91

198,829,791

803,995,6t5
200,883,903

603,1I I,712

I ,897 ,096,t 44
7E9,76t,t99

I,107,334,945

56,688,639
31,t34,4t5
19,554,224

674,843,505
464,252,3t3
210,581,122

2t0,5Et,t22 65,342,815 I 295,003
10l,0r5,097 9,291,152 2 227,642

79,E66 104,563 35',t,5',18
79,E56 102,275 355,985

94.748,952 7,925,780 892;794
216,841,25'.1 66,705,899 2.628,258

198,829,791
79',7,6'74

603,1t t,7 t2
39,862,040

343,666
265,788

29,51'7,222

6 r3,318,652

19,554,224
4,17 5,'703
3,445,E39
t,532,392

8,620,278
2-6t6,772

4 03,3 88
394,750

3.150 I43
1.878,269

1,t07,334,945
160,586,080

4;734,900
2,73 t,046

143,880,743

| ,122,036,428

7.385 .8 52

t99,627,465

t99,621,465 843,513,989
230 l9s 337

t99,62'1,46s 6r3,318.652

58,0 t8,503
42,9E7,8',75

15.030,628

r5.030.628

17 5 ,7',7 8,7 36
558 931 419

2t6,841,251

t29,s92,819
62,886,920
66,105,E99

7.429,653
4.801,395

2.62E,258

38,9E6,159
3 I, t07,890

7,8'18,269

2,052,947,324
93 0,910,896

t,t22,036,428

4l

25,640,148
4,4't4,736

r4, r 63,986
t3,t47,096
9,544,3'10

t20,406,230 5.559,589 36,772,175
55,063,415 4.264,586 28,t52,491
65,342,8t5 t.295,003 8,620,278



HOUSING AND DEVELOPMT]NT BANK
NOI'ES 'I'O TIIE CONSO LIDATED !'l N-A NCIA L STAT EM EN'rS
FOR TIIE n-lNtl MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 202t

27. DUE 1.O IrANKS

Current accounts

Deposits

local banks

Foreign banks

Non-interest bcaring balances
Interest bcaring balances (fixed rate)

Currcnt balanccs

28. CUSTO[TERS'DEPOSITS

Demand deposit
Time & call deposit5
Saving cenificates
Saving deposits
Other deposits

Institutions dcposits
Individual deposits

Non-interest bearing balances
Interest bearing balances (variable rate)
Interest bearing balances (fixed rate)

30t09t2021
EGP

355,766
695,892,000

311t2t2020
EGP

|,t64,326
'785,'16s,514

696,247,166 186,929,840
441,792,000
244,455,766

391.552.600
395,3't7,240

696,247,766 't 86-929.840

3ss,766
695,E92,000

l -164,326
'785,7 65.5 t 4

696,247,766 '786,929,840

696,247,766 't86,929,840

30to9D02l
EGP

26,683, t37,956
12,00I,043,668
8,t03JI I,584
6,953,447 ,259
2,435,134.393

3u12D020
EGP

21,'771,025.003
to,3 t 8,652,392
5,7 02,68'1 ,253
6,301 ,498,60't
2,81 5,735,250

56,176.074,860 46,98r.598,505
35,330,585,E39
20,E45,389,021

28,981,051,020
t8.000.545.485

56,176,074,860 46,981.598.505

28,607,837,576
6,952,347,259

20,6r5,890,025

23,653,016,365
6,258,398,601

17.070.t63.531
56,t76,074,860 46,98t,598,505

Current balances

Non-current balances
48,072,763,27 6
8,r03,3tt,s8,t

4t,278,9t1,252
5.102,687,253

56,1 76,074,t60 46,98 t,598.505

Intcrest rate 30t0912021
EGP

3t 112t2020
EGP

[,oDg term loans
t oars Cranted from the CBE:
Loars ofBank Activiry
New Urban Communities organization
Construction & Housing Organization
Houses Mutual Fund

Total loans grantcd from the CBE
Loans granted from the Social Fund for development
The Egyptiao Company for real estate refinanci loan
Loan granted from Export development bank lo HD leasing
Total
Current balances

Non-current balalces

8.7 50/o

8'ts%
8.7 5yo

8.'t 50/o

775J30
17,508,I12

348,035,674

t,t20,440
22,899,396

3't4,t07.091
6,4t'l 035

J66,319,1l6 404,543,962
14.'t5%,7 0/.

Ilo ,10.250/0
91,327,300
44,994,260

591,051,470

0.955,300
50.87?,880

322,19 t.598
t,099,696,t46 888,568,740

4t,047,600
I,051,648,s46

t05.780,066
182,'188,6't 4

The ban[ fulfilled itscommitments regarding thosc loans in terms ofthe principal amount & interest amount or any other conditions
during the period and cornparative period.

42

29. OTITER |,OANS

r,099,696,t46 888,568,740



HOUSING AND I)E!'IILOPMENT BANK
NO'I'I]S 1'O'I'HE CONSOLIDA-IED I-INANCIAL S'I'ATI:MENTS
}-OR'I'IIE NINT] MoNTIIS ENDED 30 SI]P'[I]MBER 2O2I

30. O'IIIER I,IA RII,Il'IT]S

Accrued interest
Uncamed revenue
Accrued expense
Creditors
Advanccd palrments for lands and units
Down payments for installrDents
Checks under payment & credit accounts under senl€ment
Creditors to buy lands

Other credit balance

Total 3,670,659,161 2.915,20r,25i

30t09t2021
ECP
619,569,510

I,753,074
60,056,906
s7J I r,014

438,901,72.4
140,82S,563
376,761,457
104,213,942

I,871,199,971

3u12D020
1]GP
223,122.2'7I

2,43 t,952
12,591,780
50,919,148

4t9,582.505
126,880,92t
217,t69,425

93,085,604
1,688,817,642

43
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FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

31. PROVISIONS
30/09t202t

Provision for contingcnr liabilnies

Provision for losrs commitmenls

Provision for tax

Provlsion for legal claims

Provision for Disastcr relicf

Provision for other cl6ims

Total

B€ginllillg bllfl[ce Charg€d rmounls Added duri[g thc
period

Utilizcd rmounts Amounb I|o longer requir€d

t02,23 I,805 (4,082,937)

(4s4,003)

(152,231,805)

(4,163,9 r3)

EGB
EndinA Behoc.

60,74t,427

16,225,372

71,586,856

138,585,320

547,536

61,764,84t

t0,533,965

35,880,479

t27,669,793

136,749,233

I,00t,539

75,307,110

50,207,462

344,891

6,000,000

13,344,45t (20.E86.7 t1

lE7,1,t 2,I l9 69,t96,806 ( 156,395,7 rE) l77J5l,Js9I02,23 t.E05 (25,,{23,653)

3l /12t2020

Provision for contrngent Iiabilities

Provision for loans commitmants

Provision for tax

Provision for lcgal claims

Provision for Disastar relief

Provisron for olhcr clainrs

Total

Provision for continge,lt liabilities

Provision for loans engagemcnts

Provisron for tax

Provision for legal claims

Paovision for Disaster relicf
Provision for othcr clarms

Total

Bcginning brlADce Charged Amoutrts Utilized amoutrh

18,2t3, t9l

15,?52,559

n7,615,676

136,235,570

t4,720

E0,E67,266

1.575,909

r,486,t 52

9,050,296

(5,EE3)

(70,014)

(499,333)

(r4,6 r0,452)

20,127,920

Amounts no longer raquired

(7,149,226)

(50.000,000)

(992,232)

EGB
EndiIlg Bll.nc.

10,533,965

15,880,479

127,669,793

176,749,233

1,001,539

75,307,1l0

.t28,E28,9E2 32,240,211 ( 1s,r85,682) ( 58,741,{s8) J87,1,12,1l9

Cherged imounts

$0,247,462)

(344,893)

(6,000,000)

( 11,344,4s r)

30/09n021

No lorlg€r required

r52,23t,805

4, r63,9t1

Totsl

(50,207,4621

(344,E93)

152,231,805

(1,836,0r7)

30n9n020

Charged amounts

(28,00 r,660)

No longer required

6,901,939

50,000,000

r9l,EE6

Total

6,901,939

(28,001,660)

50,000,000

(584,524)

(486,t 52)
(9,050,296)( 13,344.45 r )

(716,410\

(486,1s2)
(9,050,296)

(69,896,806) 156,J95,718

44

86,198,912 (38,r r4,518) 57,093,825 18,779,307



HOUSING AND Df,VELOPMENT BANK
NO'TES TO THE CONSOLIDA'TED FINANCIAL S'TA'I'EMEN'I'S
FOR'IIIE N'IND MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTE,\4BER 2O2I

Fixcd asscts and Intangiblc Asscrs

Others

Total deferred tax asset

Beginning balances ofrhe period
Charged to income statemgnt

Ending balance ofthe p€riod

3J. RE'TIRE ENT BENT-}-II'OBI, GATIOll-S

Discount rate
Expected interest rate on assets
Average medical cost per individual
Inflation rate used in medical services cost
Death rates

30t09Dozl
EGP

13,40E,J40
sr,l3t,760

3Ul2nl20
EGP

6,06E,080
56,914,886

3UO9nozt
f,GP

62,982,966
1,521J84

3l ll2Do20
EGP

(6',11.473)

63,654,439

62,982,966

30to9D02t
EGP

9EJ09,69t
2l,t 17,530

45,773,699

47,O7!,604
4,277 3A4

(9,s77,289)

31112t2020
EGP

93, t45,53t
t0,443-2s0

47,0'13,604

39,676,45)
17.087.068

(9.689,9r9)

Loa.ns impairment provision excluding the 807o dr-rring the period
Other

30t09t2021
I'GP

3t/t2t2020
ucP

45,113,699 4't,013,604

Current p€riod

l0 vo
l0.7 5yo
14,706

5 0/"

(A52-49)

Comprrisolr Yerr

lo yo

10.150/o

14,706
5Yc

(A52-49\ Brilish rable

The assumptions related to thc death rate are based on the announced recommendations, starislics, and experience in Eg)Ot.

,t5

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Defened income taxes have been totally calculated on the difference ofthe defe.red taxes under thc liabilities mcthod using a tax
ftie of 22.5yo in the current financial period,

Dcferred income taxes resultcd from previous years tax loss is not recogniztd unless there is expectcd profit taxes can be used to
decrease the pr€vious yearJ tax loss,

Defcrred trx assett flirbilities)

ljnrccognizcd defcrrcd tar asscts

Rctirement bcncfil obligation as rccorded in balancc shcct:
Medical benefit after retirement
Transactions of liabilitics during the pcriod rcprescntcd .s
follows.
Balance at the beginning ofthe Frcriod
Provided amounts during the period
Current service cost

Belance at the end ofthc period

Main actuarial assumption uscd reprcsented in the followins:

64,540,100 62,982,966

Th€ deferred tax assets related to items previously mentioned were not recognized, and this is due to that there is not a reasonable
assurance to benefit from it, or the existence ofan appropriate levcl to ensure the existence ofsufficient future tax retums through
which it is possible to benefit from lhese assets.

Dcferred tax asscts (liabilities) tralsactions:

64,540,100



HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO 'I'IIE CONSOLID ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIf, NINE MONTIIS EN'DED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

34. CAPITAL

Authorizcd Capital
The authorized capital is EGP 3 000 million, the issued and paid up capital is EGp I 265 million totaling 126,5 million shareeach share par value is EGp 10.

l- Th.e.Bank's extraordinary general assembly approved on 5llll2}O7 to increase the authorized capital from EGp 1,000million to EGP 3,000 million, and.the issued and paid up capital from EGp 550 million to EGp |,150 ml ion wittr anincrease amounted to EGp 600 million,

The,newsletter subscription had been announced on l6101/2008 for the first fees with art i[crease amounted to EGp 120million at the face value for the initial shareholders, ard ir was compleiely accomplished -a .*r"J - 1r,J-*commercial ledger,

The otill d shareholders,ard llionree) empr ffi:[i::Xfl::fee) d oncapi 0 so the issued

2- The-Baflk's extraordinary general assembly approved on I0/04/2014 to increase the issued and paid up capital from EGp1,150 million to EGP 1.265 million by contri-bute EGP I l5 miltion r.o. it 
" 

I-"gut ."."*" "ryi* zoju iy 
"r" 

J." ro,every ten share alrd marked on the bank's registef of commerce o n r4fi2t20r4\o the irrr"a -a pala ,p 
""pi,"i """ r.EGP 1,265 million.

3- general 7 to increase the issued and paid up capital from EGp
518 mit ion from rhe General reserve .i,fi" fi.i"o "-#i :ohare for res have been taken to U" _at"a on tli" Uunft,"g;$",

4- The Ban
1,518 rn ,H','""""":i"".: ,1"J"8:;per each, illion;d theofcomm ks register

5- The Bank's general assembly approved 
.on 3uo3l2o2r the statement of profit distribution proposal thar included issuedand paid up capital increase with one share per each l0 shares at p* ,jr" orecP to p"r'"*t *itt totui;",rib;11.r.ofECP I26,5 miltion.

6 In-the context of the reconciling the situation ofthe Banking Iaw No 194 issued in september 2020 (Article 4) and withreference ofArticlc 64. where the minimum paid up capital bicomes EGp 5 billion, thetant r,u, p"rroi."o tt 
" 

ioiioJng,- In 25105/202l,' the bank communicated with cenhal Bank ofEgypt to approve extension ofthe grace period tofinalze the capital increase procedures to reach EGp 5.313 Billi"o'n.- In 8- I I -2021
EGp 5.3 13 Bi 

p res to reach

- ln29t)}fzl2t n

capitarand" i il:"i:f:l
extraordinary general assembly meeting.

- In 30/8/202lthe bank has communicated with financial regulatory authoriry to approve to proceed with capital

_ 
increase procedures.

h capital increase procedures to be

The b
assem Egypt to hold extraordinary general

46
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As follow codtributors who have over than 5yo from thc issuance ca piral:
Contributors

New urban communitics authority
Rolaco ECB for investments
RIMCO CO. for investment
Misr Life insurance company
Misr insurance company
Houses Mutual Fund
Egyptian Endowments Authority

35. Rcscrvcs

Bcginning balance ofthe pcriod
Transferred from retained eaming
Ending balance ofthe pcriod

ts- l,cpa lrescrvc

Beginning balance ofthe pcriod
Transferred from retained eamings

Ending balance ofthe period

C- Gcncral rcserve

Bcginning balance ofthe period
Transferred from retained earnings

Ending balence ofthe period

D- Soccial rcscrvc

Beginning balance of the pcriod

Ending balance ofthe period

E- Othcr rcservos

Bcginning balancc of thc period
Trarsferred from retained earnings

Ending belancc ofthe period

Number of
sharcs

45,255,888
r 5, t79,330
r4.800.800
13,540,608
t2,s90_990
t 1,244.540
7,615,540

Pcrcc[a.ge of
contribution

29,81%
tovo

9.75%
8.92yo
8.29%
7.4tyr
5.030/"

EGP in
thousrnds

452,559
t51,793
t48,008
t35,406
t25,9t0
I t2,445
76,355

30t09t2021
f,GP

3t,500
$2,$A,487

4,104,000,000
9,341,966

34,139,831
89,215,810

3l tDno2v
EGP

27.000
542.401.962

3,t04,000,000
9,344,966

21,702,455
89,2t 5,8t 0

30t09t2021
EGP

27,OO0

4,500

3t n2no20
EGP

22,500
4,500

3r.500 27.000

JOt09t202l
EGP
542,401,962
90,036,525

3l fi2t2020
EGP
444-847.495

9't -554-46-t
612,43t,487 542.401-962

30t091202t
EGP

3,104,000.000

3u1212020
EGP

1,779,000,000
1,000 , 000,000 325 000,000
4,104,000,000 1.104,000,000

9,341,966

9.344.966

30l09Do2r
EGP

2t,702,455
12,431,376

3Ul2n$20
EGP

r 8.365.606
3,336,849

30t09t2021
EGP

rul2t2020
EGP

9.344.966

47

21.702-455

Banking risks reserve
Legal rcscrve
Gcneral rcserve
Spe.ial rcserve
Other reserves

General risks rescrve

Total rcs€rves at the end ofthc pcriod

Movements in ReservB arc prcsented as follows:

A- Gencral Batlkins risks ]cscrve

4,869,r70,s94 J,766692.t93

9,344,965

34,139,83t



TIOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO 'I'IIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATf, MENTS
r-OR TIIE NINE MONTHS EN'DED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O2I

Bcginning balancc ofthc period

Ending balancc ofthc period

Cash and Duc from central bank
Due from banks
Finaacial asses other than fair value through profit and loss

3E. N II\ t_ I_-t B I IES \I\I

A- Lcpal claims

B- Ca pital comm cn ts

Lefters ofGuararlee
LetteN ofCredit
Less:

Monetary Colla(erals

Contingcnt liabilities

30t09t2021
ECP

3t fi2D020
EGP
89.2t5.8r089,21 5,810

89,2r5,810

36. DIVIDENDSDISTRIBUTIONS

Dividends distributions e not recorded until they are approved by rhe shareholdcrs gencral asscmbly,

37. CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

89,2 t5,8 t0

30109t2021
T]GP
94t,443,120

8,4 t5,060,024
39,546,r53

!0n9n020
EGP
985,'t93,446

3,198,3t4.406
486, t09,630

9,396,049297 4.670,217,482

There are a number of existing cases filed againsl the bank without providing provisions as it,s not expected to make anyIosses from it,

ber 2021 compared to EGp 839,502,4 t1
and the top management are confidence
igations,

C- Opcratine commitments
The operating commitmenrs amounting to EGp 56,130,46r in 30 seprember 2o2r against amounr of EGp 63,222,4g8 incomparativc pcriod aod representing in operating lease contracts.

30tognozt
I'G P

2,4E3,998,217
58,342,647

3llt2no20
EGP

2,3t7,400,728
23,s37,29s

(30s,009,601) (275.0 ll.86t )
2,237,33t,263 2.065.926.162

.IIJ

G- Gencral risks reserve

D- Continecnt liabilities



HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO TIII] CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE NTNE MONTIIS ENDED 30 SEPTF,MBER 2O2I

39. MUTUAI, FUNDS
El-Tamccr ulual l-und

\IA Fu nd

l'hc pcriod trom 201 20l The bank pays the tax monthly and prepare the tax settlcments in the due dates under Iaw no,
(91) Year 2005

Stamp duty tax

The Dcriod from I Ausust 2006 till 3l March 2013: The tax inspections was carried ouq and the tax differences resulted
from the tax inspeclions have been paid.

'l'h€ Dcriod m I ADril 2013 till 3l I) bcr 2018: The tax inspection has been carried out i0 accordancc with the
executive instructions issued by tax authority No. 6l for the year 20l5, tax assessment did not yet received, and the bank
pays the stamp duty regularly on a quarter basis

The Deriod from I Jenuarv 2019 till 3l D.c€mber 2020: The tax inspection did nor yet canied ou! the bank pays rhe
stamp duty rcgularly on a quarter basis..

fie board ofdirectors has agreed or l0 September,2007 to establish accumulated fund with regular dividcnds distribution
called El-Taamcer Mutual Fund for EcP (100) million, maraged by Prime company for Finarcial Investmenrs.

The Central Bank of Egypt has agreed on 30 January 2008 to establish the fund undcr the license no. 449 approved by the
E$/ptian financial supervisory authoriry on l8 March 2008

Tle newsletter subscription for the fund has been announced on April 14, 200E, rhe subscriplion begun at 4 May 2008 and
ended on 5 June 2008 the subscription reachei EOP 141,2 million The bank's portion is 59lo rcprcsented in (50000) ICs
amounted to ECP (5) million with face valuc EGP 10o/share.

The redemption value ofthe certificate on 10 Senremher ?0?t war FGp 185 93.

The board of directors has agrced on 27 Aptil2oo9 to establish daily accumulatcd mutual Fund (Mawared) managed by
Prime Company for Financial Investments. The Ccntral Bark ofEgnt has agrced on 9 July 2009 to establish the fund undei
the liceDse no, 544 aPprovcd by the ESDtian financial supervisory authority on l6 November 2009, The subscription begun
at 2l Deccmber 2009 with bank's portion of EGP 12 million that repr€scnts a share of 5olo prosented in 0.986 million
certificates with a nominal value ofEGP l0 each.

The redemption value of l.he certificate on 30 September 2O2l was EGp 31,81 82.

40. TAX STATUS

Pavroll tax
[-rom besinninE ofthe activitv -2007: The Bank,s salary tax has been inspected, paid and settled,

The Dcriod from 2008 to 2012: The Bank's payroll tax has been examined, Claims have bern raised to appeal committees
Thc pcriod from 2013 to 2017: Under inspecrion

The bank's stamp duty lax has been inspected, paid and settled for rhe banks' branches rill rhe end of imposing the low
no,(l lI) for the ycar 1980 (stamp tax), From Augusl l, 2006 the law no, (143) for the year 2006 that amended by law no,
(l l5) for the year 2008 has been appliod.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA'I F,D FINANCIAL STATEME]\-'IS
FOR TIIE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBI,R 2O2t

CorDoratc ncomc tax:
!!!Q - 2004: Tax inspection has been complered and senled.

M.:2!]2: Tax inspection has been completed and settlcd, the dispute has been completed benveen the bank and tax
authority rhrough disputes committee according to the law No. 179 for the year 2016 that has been replaced
with law No.14 for the year 2018 conceming corporate income tax for the years fiom 2005 till 2012, that has
been finalized with signed recommendation from minister offinarce to finalize the disputes.

!!f! -2014: Tax inspe.tion has been completed and settlcd and the internal committec still in process, appeal committees
for these claims are in place.

fQl! !Qll: Tax inspection completed, internal committee procedures have been completed

2018-2020: The bank's has applied its tax return under tax income law no, (91) Year 2005 and its amendmcnt in rhc due dares
and the tax had paid and still did not yer tax inspecred.

,l l. Sienificant cvents

The coronavirus ("COVID-19") pandemic hzLS spread across v.rrious geographies globally, causing disruprion to
business and economic activities. COVID-19 has brought about uncenainties in the global economic environment

HDB is closely monitoring thc situation and has activated its business continuity plaJl and other risk management
practices to manage the potential business disruption that resulted from the sprcading ofCOVID- l9 and irs impact on the
operations and financial performance as a result from tho uncertainties caused by COVID-19 and in anticipation ofthe
expected economic slowdown, HDB is closely monitoring the loan portfolio considering the relevant impact of virus on
the various qualitative and quanlilative factors wherc determining the significant increase in credit risk. specifically for
the exposures ofthe mostly affected sectors.
Accordingly, HDB has taken protective actions by building r-rp proper provisions as a mitigation plan for rhe COVID-19
impacl on the loan portfolio as ofend of March 2020. Funher buildup ofprovisions might be ta.tien, precaurionary, rill
the end ofthe grace period, till actual performance ofthe portfolio start revealing itself.
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